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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Spice Money Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Spice Money Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (Sas),
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 50 to the financial statements which describes the impact of the adjustment
pursuant to the Company’s reassessment in relation to income from recharge of airtime coupons, resulting
in restatement of the affected line items of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled
the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial
statements. T
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter _ How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Revenue recognition (as described in Note 45(K) of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of digital financial | The audit procedures included the following:
services and other services is recognised | « We evaluated the Company's accounting policies

and accrued with reference to the number pertaining to revenue recognition and assessed
of successful transactions and the terms of compliance of the policies in terms of the applicable
agreements for such service. Accordingly, accounting standards.

revenue amounting to Rs. 42,887.27 lakhs | « With the support of the Information Technology (IT)
have been recognised during the year. specialists, we identified and tested controls over

revenue recognition which focused on whether
revenue from sale of digital financial services and
other services was recorded as per the commercials
agreed and number of successful transactions.

e We tested on sample basis, and inspected the
underlying customer contracts, tested revenue
calculations and assessed whether the revenue
recognised agreed to the underlying records.

e Performed detailed substantive testing on a sample
of revenue transactions to verify the accuracy and
completeness of revenue recognition.

e Tested the completeness and accuracy of the data
extracted from the systems on a sample basis and
performed recalculations to verify whether revenue
has been recognized in the correct period.

e We have assessed the adequacy of disclosures
included in financial statements in this regard.

Given the complexity of the Company's
revenue recognition policies, especially in
the context of the financial technology
industry, there is an inherent risk with
respect to the accuracy and completeness
of the revenue recorded given the
voluminous nature and the variety of service
transactions which are processed on a real
time basis through automated flows.
Accordingly, accuracy and completeness of
revenue have been considered as a key audit
matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the director's report in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When
we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to Those Charged with Governance.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under Section 133 of the Act. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions

of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and

other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate o
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of ZGHI &\
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that gi% \
. true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. -
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements (continued)

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)() of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences A
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication/,}
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by one of the joint auditors i.e., Singhi & Co. who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those statements on May 18, 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except (i) that the back-up of certain books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on
servers physically located in India on a daily basis and (ii) for the matter stated in the paragraph
(iD(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024, has been
paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act. However, there was an additional remuneration payable as of
March 31, 2024, to an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer as of March 31, 2024, which
has since been approved by shareholders on May 08, 2024;

(h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(i) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statements:;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. -ed to the Investor Education and
\

Page 4 of 11




S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Office 405 World Mark - 2, Unit No. 1704, 17" Floor,

Asset No. 8 IGI Airport Hospitality District, World Trade Tower, DND Flyway Sector-
Aerocity New Delhi - 110 037, India 16, Noida 201301, India

Tel: +91 11 4681 9500 Tel: +91 (120) 297 0005, 9205575996

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

iv.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 51 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 51 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (@ and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The final dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for
the previous year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend. Further, as stated in note 49 to the financial statements, the Board of
Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting; and

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility for all relevant transactions recorded in the software used by the Company
except that audit trail feature was not enabled for direct changes to database when using
certain access rights as referred to in note 46 to the financial statements. Further, we are
unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of software operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in such software or whether there were any instances
of the audit trail feature being tampered with as explained in the said note.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP For Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Weqistration number: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm registration number: 302049E
e

per Anil Gupta per Bimal Kumar Sipani

Partner Partner

Membership No.: 087921 Membership No.: 088926

UDIN: 24087921BKAQCT7376 UDIN: 24088926BKELWX6071

Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
report of even date

Re: Spice Money Limited (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of

account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

0] @ (A)

(B)
(b)

©

(d)

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iii) (a)

o)

©

((e))]

(e)

(f)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them annually which
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from the banks during the year on the basis of security of fixed deposits held
by the Company with the banks. Based on the records examined by us and sanction letter
issued by the banks, the Company is not required to submit any quarterly
returns/statements. The Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the
basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies,
or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies or any other
parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh
loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)Xf) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company
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(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions

)

(vid

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

x)

(a)

(b

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

("

(@

(b)

of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
The provisions relating to sales tax, service tax, duty of customers, value added taxes and
employees' state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs lakhs) which the the dispute is
amount pending
relates
Central Goods | Goods and 95.76 | FY 2018-19 | Uttarakhand
and Services Services Tax High Court
Tax Act, 2017

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. The Company does not have any associate or joint venture.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/
further public offer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) Order is not applicable to the
Company. .
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(a)

(b)

()

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(a)

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
quarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the/(_:_Qm any.
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(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social

Responsibility is not applicable to t
on clause 3(xx)(b) of the Orderisn

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005
per Anil Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 087921

UDIN: 24087921BKAQCT7376

Place: Noida
Date: May 10, 2024

he Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
ot applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number:/SDEQ 9E

/’Hlﬁ
&8

/

per Bimal Kumar Sipani U *,
Partner

Membership No.: 088926
UDIN:240889268KELWX6071 :
Place: Noida

Date: May 10, 2024
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S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Office 405 World Mark - 2, Unit No. 1704, 17" Floor,

Asset No. 8 I1GI Airport Hospitality District, World Trade Tower, DND Flyway Sector-
Aerocity New Delhi - 110 037, India 16, Noida 201301, India

Tel: +91 11 4681 9500 Tel: +91 (120) 297 0005, 9205575996

Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Spice Money
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI™. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process desigrjed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepgrahon of

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material fect on the financial statements.

Page 10 of 11




S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Office 405 World Mark - 2, Unit No. 1704, 17th Floor,

Asset No. 8 1G] Airport Hospitality District, World Trade Tower, DND Flyway Sector-
Aerocity New Delhij - 110 037, India 16, Noida 201301, India

Tel: +91 11 4681 9500 Tel: +91 (120) 297 0005, 9205575996

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the Possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud May occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the |CAI.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & Co. LLP For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm registration number: 302049F

(:,HJ__&EE:‘ N

# — $

Oap 4 @\
per Anil Gupta per Bimal Kumar Sipani | | BELHI b
Partner Partner \%, NCR &
Membership No.: 087921 Membership No.: 088926 w,&cﬁc\)
UDIN: 24087921BKAQCT7376 UDIN: 24088926BKELWX6071 o
Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024
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Spice Money Limited

Regd. Office: JA-122, 15t Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, Jamia Nagar, New Delhi, India, 110025
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

B ST =SS
Particulars Note

e = March 31, 2024 h

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and cquipment

3
Other intangible assets 4
Intangible assets under development 4
Right of use 5
Financial assets
Investments 0
Loans 7
Other financial assets 8
Non current tax assets {net)
Deferred tax assets (net) 29
Other non-current assets 9

Total non-cu
Current assets

Inventories 10
Financial assets

ent assets

Trade receivables 11
Cash and cash equivalents 12
Bank balances other than above 13
Loans 7
Other financial assets 8

Current tax assets (net)

Other eurrent assets 9
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equty share capital 14
Other equity 15

Tutal equity

ent liabilities

liabilities
Borrowings 16
Lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 17
Provisions 13

Total non-current liabilities
Current lialbil
Financial liah

Bomowings 16
Tease liablities
Trade payables 19

- total owstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises: and
- ttal outstanding dues of other than micto enterprises & smal enterprises

Other financial liabilities 20
Other current liabilities 17
Provisions 18

Total current liabilities
Tutal labilities
Total equity and lia hilities

t

Suniary ol material accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For Singhi & Co

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants -

LCAL Firm Registration No, 301003E 300005 ICAI Finm Registration No, 39%9‘%\"' .
LAY DD B ey

f/:'\'\i;' £ \(-“\O

[[2/ NOIDA

A

per Anil Gupta per Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner Partner

Membership No.: 087921 Membership No.: 088926
Plage: Noida

Date: May 10, 2024

“DC

As at

As at
March 31, 2023

279.61 106,84
101.46 276.00
637.43 226,59
15.59 5
6,276,99 6,276.99
: 148,16
3,516,07 2,047.07
13.24 2,989.47
583,02 1.039.41
1535 i
T e 13,110.53
210.17 474.62
2.163.76 1,910.33
11,641.39 11.440 56
21,007.38 21,577.99
148.16 1.01
129551 151978
916.10
3.712.54
10,636.83
53,747.36
4,408.99 4.408.99

0.276,23
10,685.22

38539
263

485013

%265.12

3.297 88

1.830.55 7.154.53
5.85

20,21 55,16

1,326.56 1,879.82

LB 1800 2.190.60

30,969.84 29,035.15

S
39,175.28 4042365
ST T 4,18224°
51,145.26 53,747.36

For and on bt:haif{.l}arﬂn’:ﬁ"d of Spice Maoney Limige
1

Sunil Kumar Kapoor
Director and Chief Financial Officer
DIN: g5322540

ai
Company Secretary
Mem. No.:A28280

--""-’-"

Venkatramu Jayanthi
Executive Director
DIN: 08918442

M




Spice Money Limited

Regd off- 622, 6th Floor, DLF Tower, Jasola District centre, New Delhi - 110025
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3, 2024

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

S _.__‘———————_________"_‘—-—-—-—-_____ﬁ
_-_____________________-_______'_'_ For the year ended

Particulars

Note March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses
Purchase of traded goods
Changes in inventories of traded goods
Service & commission charges
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expenses

~Current year

-Adjustment of tax related to earlier years
Deferred tax

“Current year

-Adjustment of tax related to earlier vears

-Change in deferred tax due to change in rate

Income tax expense
Pralit/{loss) fur the year

Other comprehensive income
Re-measi
Income tax eflict

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) for the year

“ment gains (losses) on defined benefit plans

v net of tax

Earnings per cquity share (nominal value of share is Rs 10)

Basic (In Rs,)
Diluted (In Rs.)

Summary of Material aceounting policies

The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Finn Registration No. 301003 E

P Cf)o

per Anil Gupta
Partner
Membership No,: 087971

: May 10, 2024

For Singhi & Co

Chartered Accountants s

ICAI Firm Registration No. 30 2OF9E b=
/’3%1EL‘§ o

per Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner
Membership No.: 088926

/l/';\:}/ ‘-\_'"O.. \

For the }m—
March 31, 2023
(Restated)

43.942.56 43,153.84

2 2.034.95 1,250,38
45,977.51 4440422
481,51 817.50
23 264.45 (374.59)
24 26,264.70 26,322.18
5 9.379.26 9,197.92
26 486.63 345.77
27 547.01 2,011,778
28 545128 6,282.42
42,874.84 44,602,985
3.102.67 (198.76)
A7 822.00 624.07
T 138067 (822.83)
29
(L61)
11431 (203.57)
36,99 -
282,90 .
974,48 (205.18)
T iaeae (617.65)
69.47 (62.48)
(17.49)
51.98 e
1,358.17 )
30 296 {1.40)
30 281 (L40)

For and on belmlt‘w of Spice Money Limi

L/

v
Sunil Im

Director and Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 04322540

--"""'-_:

Venkatramu Jayanthi
Executive Direct

ar Modi
ecutive officer ;
Mem. No.:A28280




Spice Money Limited
CIN-UT2900DL2000PLC1 04950

Repd. Office: JA-122, 15t Floor, DLF Tower - A Jusola District Contre, Jamia Nagar, New Delhi, India, 110025
Statement of cash flows for the Year ended March 31, 2024

- N sl (Rl
L For the year ended For the year ended
o ity Hoe March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Cash flows from operating nctivities S : = e
Profit before tax 228067 (B2283)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tux to net cash lows:
Net gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment 2 (.74 {0.17)
Remeasurement (loss) on defined benefil plan recognised as OC]
Execptional ilem (ner) 47 - 47107
Depreciation and amortisation expenscs a7 347.01 201178
Allowance for expected credit loss 18 2393 7925
Bad debis/advances written off 28 3001 5%
Interest income 22 (1844 59y (L149.23)
Gain on derecognition of {inancial liabiliy a2 (78.42) -
Share based pavment expense 23 106,61 11037
Finanee cost 26 ;

Operating profit before working capital changes
Waorking capital adjustments:
{Increase)/Decrease in trade reccivables (273 46) 225687
(Inercase)Decrease in myenlories 264,45 {196.43)
{Increase)/ Decrea

ase in financial agd olfier assets g L7710 (LisL9g)

M0 % v GagultreS oyed frow<iow§ o T 219898
Cash Tows from operations 4,106.29 ' - - 412405
Incame taxes refind/(paid), in net L (602w
Net cash llows from operating activities {A) 5,556.06 2,521.06
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Propery. plant and cquipment (neluding (U G0) (L1935 11
intangible assets and intangible asseis under

Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 092 63
Deerease in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (907,11) (2891077
Interest received ¥ . lonas2

(3,020,

Cish flows fram financing activities

Payment of lease liabilitics (1.63) -
Repayment/Proceeds from short term borrowings (nel) (457820 183923
Dividend paid on pulson ibsl i shares {165.00) (163.00)
Redemption of preference shares (504,00 .
Finanee cost 5 + % 17L20
L gt of by S - .
Heb gash Haws Pyt /(ued fw) 4 mcmc,,‘u:f actyustiey ) 1.603.03

Net decrease in cash & cash cquivalents (A +B+C)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Cash & cash equivalents at the end ol the vear

Components of cash & cash equivalents:

Cash on hand* 12 .00 000
Chegues in hand 12 R BT L L)
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 2

*less than one thousand.

Notes:
i clivities required under Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™: e e
Preference  lnterest Acerued bug Tease i T T Total
S — —_ Ohiliis not due R —— s 'y
Asat 1 April 2023 3,297.88 - - 715453 10,452.41
Cash Mlows movement;
Net proceeds/| Repayment) of liabilities {500.00) £ (1.03) {4,578.24) (5,079.27)
Interest Paid (165.00) (173.15) - (338.15)
Non-cash flows movement:
Additions - 16.26
Interest expenses 285.19 - 486,88
~Gunonderecomitionof iabiity gy ", R e

283965

Asoat 1st April 2022 3,188.31 - - 8.503.61
Cash flows mo ent:
Net proceeds/{Repayiment) of liabilities - - - 1.839.23 1,839.23
Interest Paid (165.00) (71.20) - {236.20)
Non-cash lows movement:
expenses 274.57 71.20 - s e 345.77

\sat March 31, 2023 329788

b) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method "us set out in Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Flow:
¢} The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the il of Spg
For 5.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP For Singhi & Ca
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants C:/' Yty

i .
ICAL Firm Registration No J01003E/E300005  ICAI Firm Registration No. 302049E

Sunil kumar Kapoor
Directorfnd Chief Financial Officer

W DIN: 05322540
/ﬁ

Anil Gupta Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner Partner Company Secretary
Membership No_- 08702 Membership No. 088924 Mem. No.:A28280

Place. Noida
Date: May 10, 2024




Snice Money Limited

Read. Office: JA-122, 150 Floor, DLF Tower -
ent of Changes in Equity for the vear ¢
i+ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Eauity Share Capital
For the vear ended March 31, 2024;

Oridinary
At April
Chanecs in equity share
Restated balance at
Issuc of share capital
At March 31, 2024

Eauity shaves of Rs. 10 each Issued,
Rl

A, Jasola District Ce,

nded March 31, 2024

canital due 1o prior period errors
the begining of current reporting peringd

Issued, subscribed and nartly paid up shares

Class
At April 1, 2023

Chanees in cauity share capilal due to prior period errors

Restated balance ag
Issue of share capital
At March 31, 2024

For the vear ended Maych 31, 2023:

Oridinary Eguity shares
At April 1, 2022

Changes in equity share capital
Restated balance at
Issuc of share capital
At March 31, 2023

due to prior pe

the beining of current reporting peripd

riod errors

the begining of curvent reparting period

Issued, subscribed and partly called/naid up shares

Class B Shares: Equity shares of Rs.
At April 1, 2022

Chanstes m equity share capital due w prior perind ermors

Restated balanee at the begining of current reporting period

Issue af share capital
At March 31, 2023

Total Equity Share Cavital as at March 31 4
Total Eauity Share Capital as aq March 31,

B Other eauity

Far the vear ended Mareh M0

Particulars

Balance as at 1 ;
Cha
Restated balance as at April 1.2023

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive iy ome

Share based pavincnis

Share based payment reserve ransfemed W g

2023

Balautcgs_nljh_rghjI_LZI,I_I-J-_ = T

Far the year ended March 31, pilRA]

Particulars

Balance as at Anril 1, 2
Channes in accounting
Restated balance as at Apvil 1, 2022
Total comprehensive loss for the vear
Loss far the vear

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Share based pivments

Balance as at March 31, 2023 e s

2024
2023

aes in sccounting policy or prior period errors

uny {net of Lax)

On account of redempuon AFNCRES frefer nate 4%)

»subseribed and fully paid

B Shares: Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach and paid up Rs I cach

of Rs. 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid

10 cach and ealled/paid up Rs. 1 cach

ooliey or prior perind errors

Securities
Premivm

e

Share buy hack
reserve account

T

31187

ve. Jamia Nagar, New Delhj, India, 110025

e ————— L LA
440,02,975 44030

_— ==
—— Do, ol shares Anount

8.69.030

ofshares
1.40,02.975 4,400.30

002,975 400,30
—_—— _“-————________-_,..
— 44002975 0 4,400,350

s i

BODU30

—a
——— 869030

N YT T 2=

448, 72,005
+.48,72.005

440899
4.408,99

EEECES r ST TR
i E:p‘il_[ = u_‘_-| Deemed capital
Tk .

Capital| Share Based Payment contribution
fﬂ.mf% e R Rﬂ_mw e _Rcse::\-'EJ . __“"Tgs S
(429.65) 465,93 - 91953 236.83
429.65) 46593 . 919.53 23683
3 = = 1.306,19 -
2 - 519 =
— {35,88)
200,95
Decmed capital Tota)
contribution
N 20685 540406
BT T T
- {617.65)
e ____H").@s
- (658,30}
— 11037

_5_

4,856.13

T

Total ]
|

-
4.856.13
Tsésis'_[

L.306.19

— . 5198

1.358.17
106.61 |
[44,63]‘}

6,276,23



Regd, Office: JA-| 22, 1st Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre,
nded March 31, 2024

Statement of Changes in Eq
(Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise Stated)

B Othier eq uity (continned)

ity for the Ve e

(1) Security Account represents amount af pr

Act, 2013,

(i1} Share buy back TEEerve pccount represents amount trar

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(1) Capital reserve Fepresents reserve created persuant 1o

s damia Nagar, New Delhi, India, 110025

ium received on issye of shares 1o shareholders a1 4 price more than ils face value and ean be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companjes
isferred from general reserve account on cancellation of equity shares bought back pursuant lo buy back scheme and can be utilized in accordance with

Scheme of Arrangement elfective in earlier vears and ean be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013

(v} Share based pavment reserve relates 1o stock options granted 1o emplovees under Employes Stock Option Plan 2015 and shall be transferred 1o securities premmium Becountretuned earnings on

excercise/cancellation of aptions (Refer note no 32)
(v} Retained eamings are prafits eamed by the Com
¥} Deemed capital contribution is the portion of prelerence s
(vii} Section 55 of The Companies Aet, 2013 requires thal whege

shares 1o be redeemed. o @ reserve. 1o be called the Capital
the Capital Redemption Reserve Account were paid-up sh

The accompanying notes form an internal part of the financial

As per our report of even date

For 8.R. Batliboi & Cp, LLP

Chartered Accountams

ICAI Firm Registration No. 301 003E/E3iins

Per Anil Gupta
Pariner
Membership No - ug793)

Place, Noida
Date: May 10, 2024

transfer to capital redemption res
capital created in accordanc
preference shares are redee
Redemption Reserve Account, an,
are capital of the Company

Slatements,

For Singhi & Cq
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No 02049

b —

Kumar Sipani

ner Bin
Partner
Membership No - 185926

erve and payment of div
e with Ind AS 109 arigin
med out of the profis o
d the provisions of the

tdend to shareholdess

' of account of preference shares 1ssued to the holding company

{ the company. there shall, out of such profits, ba transferred, a sum equal 1o the nominal amount of the
Act relating to reduction of share capital of a company shall, except as provided in this cectior, apply ae i

For and on behalf of the Board of Spice Money Limited

ol

Sunil Kumay Kapoor
Direcy
DIN: 0§322540

Venkatramn Jayanthi

and ('hic.f:qunch Olficer Executive Director
DIN: 0891 8442

Clusitali ffsai
Chiel Eftcutive officer Company Secretary
Mem. No..AZ&280




Spice Money Limiteqd

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U?Z‘JOUDLZI'JUUPLCIGJQM
(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

L. Reporting Entity

§plce Money Limited (CIN-LI?Z‘JUGI)IJ.UUOPLL‘I0f193')} (“the Company”) is 4 public Company domiciled in India and 18 incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India

Spice Money is one of India’s largest tech-cnabled Hyper Local Payments Network offering various services like Cash Deposit, Cash Withdrawal, Balance Tnquiry, Bill
Payments, Aadhaar Enabled Services, Air Time Recharge, POS Services, Railway Ticketing Services, Cash Management Services ete. through its authorized agents.

During the vear, the registered office of the Company has been shifted to JA-122, |5t Floor, DLF Tower - A, Jasola District Centre, Jamia Nagar, New Delhi, India. | 10025
from 622, 6th Floor, DLF Tower, Jasola Distriet centre, New Delhi-] 10025,

2, Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Status of Compliance:-

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) preseribed under Section 133 of the Campanies Act
2013, vead with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time,

The financial statements have been prepared on acerual and going concern basis, The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements except wheye a newly issued Ind AS (s nitially adopted or 2 revision to an existing accounting standard required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in yse.

The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and authorised for issue on May 10, 2024, However, the shareholders of the
Company have the power to amend the Finaneial Statements after the 1ssue.

sis of preparation

The financial stateiments have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following measured at fair value:
- Financial instruments

- Defined benetit plans and other long-term emplovee benefits

= Share based payviments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer g liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price 15 directly abservable or estimated using another valuation technique, [n estimating the fair valye of an asset or g liability, the Company takes
nto account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes i these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 116 — Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 -
Inventories or value in use jn [nd AS 36 - Impainnent of Assets,

Hation currency
presented in Indian National Rupee (), which is the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest lakhs (2
> indicated,

2.3, Functional and pre
These financinl statements
00.000), except when otherwi

2.4 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below Sych accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated,

AL Current versus non-current classification

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the time involved between (he
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. the Company has identified twelve manths as its operating cvele for determining current
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as not-current assets and non-current liabulities respectively,

B. Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost imcludes deemed
cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised as at Ist April, 2015 measured as per the previous Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAPR), Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to jis working condition and location for its mtended use. Borrow ng costs
ineurred during the period of construction is capitalised as part of cost of qualifying asset.

Al item of property, plant and equipment is tecognised as an asset il it s probable that future economic benefits associated with the itein will flow to the Company and ils
cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle 1s applied to costs incurred mitially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also 1o costs incurred
subsequently to add to, teplace part of. All other Tepain and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recopnised in {he statement of profit and loss as incurred,
Wiien a replacement ocewrs, the carrying value of the replaced part is derecognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having
different useful lives, these companents are accounted for as separate items,

The gamn or loss arising on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment is determined ag the difference between sale proceeds and carrving value of such item, and is
recopnised in the statement of profit and loss,




Spice Money Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2024
CIN: L!TZQGHDI.ZGUOPI.CIO‘NSB

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

2. Material Ace ing Policics {conti
C. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated ui cost ol acquisition or construction less accumulaied amortisation and impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which
represents the carrying value of intangible assets recognised as at 1 April, 2015 measured as per the previous Gienerally Aceepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Intangible
assets purchased are measured ar cost as at the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated mpairment, it any.

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development fur o project in accordance g
Judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when g
project management model,

with its accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management's
product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established

Software (Inhouse Developed) - Product development costs are capitalized as incurred if technical and commereial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future onomic
benetits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and yse or sell the sofiware and the costs can be measured teliably. The costs which can be
capitalized include materjal cost. emplovee benefits and other overhead cost those are direetly attributable 1o preparing the asset for its intended use.

D. Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Depreciation on all assets commences from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and
useful lives of asscts and residual values are resularly reviewed and. when necessary, are rey ised,
Depreciation is provided on straight line method using the rates arrived at on the basis of estimated useful live
useful life (years)

are spread over their estimated yseful economic lives. The estimated

s given in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Estimated

Life of Assets
as per Schedule 11

Nature

- Dam Processing Machines -

ice Equipment | exeluding mobile handsets)

- Mobile Handsets 3 years
- Payment Devices (Pin pad) (Refer Note no. 47) | vear

- Payment Devices (Pin Pad) 3 years
= Vchicles

8 vears

Assets value up to 35,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors neluding the cffects of obs
factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of maintenance expendity
from the asset.

olescence, demand, competition, and other economic
wres required to obtain the expected future cash flows

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis,
software, the Company has estimated useful life of five vears or less.

from the date that they are available for use. In case of computer

Estimated uscful life

3 Years

5 Years
S Years

In-house developed software

E. Borrowing Costs

The company expense out all borrowing costs in the period in which they oceur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds,

F. Impairment of non-fina ncial assets

The Company assesses. at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assct may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
assel is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assels or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset js considered impaired and
is written down 1o its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the r specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs ol disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, If no such transactions can
be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on iny cntorics, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

For assets an assessment is made ot each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication ex s, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGL's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment los ‘ersed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its tecoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation. had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

G. Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product 1o its present location and condition : re accounted for as follow

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs, net of GST Input Credit. incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on FIFO Basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Provision for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, wherever considered necessary, are recognised in the books of account,
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2. Material Accounting Policies {eontinued)
H. Revenue Recognition
The Company is in the business of providing business correspondence services through fintech platform such as AEPS, Domestic Money Transfers, Cash management

¢5, ete. and other digital financial services. € ompany also is also having licenses from government authorities such as IRCTC, NPCI, ete. for providing services through
digital platform.

Revenue fiom servies is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with business partners 1. as and when services are rendered.
e.g Revenue from digital financial services and other services such as domestic money transfer (DMT), AEPS, BBPS, CMS, Tap up recharges ete, are recognized when the
services are actually rendered on real time basis. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Services Tax charged on such services. Any amount unbilled as on year end 1s

shown as trade receivables where the amount tecoverable from the customer without any future perfonmance obligation and the Company has unconditional right over such
considerat

L Interest income

Interest income from g f ial asset is rec gnised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income 15 accrued on a time proportionate hasis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initia) recogmition.

L Income Taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used 10 compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current tax relating to items recopnised outside statement of Profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or Joss (either in other compreliensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC| or directly in equity, Managenment periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 1o mterpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets is offset agamst current tax liabilities if, and only if, a legally enforceable 1
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seitle the liability simultaneously

texists to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to

Deferred 1ax
=Ztierred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recogmised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that i is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the can v forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised. Defersed tax liabilities are generally recopnised for all the taxable temporary differences,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecopnised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitjes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the ltability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacied or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recogmsed outside statement of profit or loss is recognised ouside statement of profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in equity ).
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC| ordireetly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are o
K. Employee benefits

tif a legally enforceable right exists to sct off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the de

Short-term benefits
ahori-term benefity
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the service rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the

employee renders the serviges,

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined conmtribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recopnizes contribution payable 1o the provident fund selieme and State Plans mamely Employees' State Insurance Fund, as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service,
Company’s contribution 1o Pro
the contribution

Defined b ts plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions 1o be made to a separately admnistered fund. Gratuity is a defined benefit
abligation,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method by actuarial valuer at cach reporting date. In respect of post-
retirement benefit re-measurements comprising of actuarial mains and losses, the effect of the asset eeiling, excluding amounts meluded in net interest on the net defined benefit
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o med camings through OC! in the period in

dent Fund is made in accordunce with the Statute, and are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to

liablity and the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the balar
which they oceur Re-measurements not reclassified to statement of profit or loss i subsequent periods, )
Past service cost is recogmised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised,

whichever is carlier

Other long-term b ts

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-tenm employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the wnused entitlement that has accununlated at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains/ losses on the

compensated absences are immediately taken to the statemen of profit and loss and are not deferred.
il
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2, Material Accounting Policies (continued)
K. Employee benefits (continued)

Shared Based Payments
The company recognises compensation expense relating to share-based payment in statement of profit and Joss using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, "Share-based
Payment”.
‘The Company i itially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black and Scholes model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which 15 dependent on the terms and conditions of
the grant. Vesting conditions, other than market conditions i, performance based condition are not taken into account when estimating the fair value. This estimate also
requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making
assumptions about them, The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in note 32

L. Leases

Company as a le.

The Company assesses if a contract is or conlains a lease at inception of the contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period time in exchange for consideration.

The Company ccognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the cammencement date, except for short-term leases of twelve months or less and leases for which the
underlyin, et is of low value, which are expensed in the statement of operations on a straight-line hasis over the lease term,

M. Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

Provisians are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources and amounts can be estimated reliably
Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises when there is a presence of a legal or constructive commitiment that has resulted from past
events, for example, legal disputes or onerous contracts. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions are measured at the estitmated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, inel uding
the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are tiscounted to their present values, where the time valye of money is material,

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligration is recoguised as a separate asset. However, this asset
thay not exceed the amount of the related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

In those cases where the outflow ol economic resources as a resul af present obligations is considered improbable or remote, no liability 15 recognised

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed anly by future events not wholly within the eontrol of the Company or
* Present obligations arising from past events where it is not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation or a reliable estimate of the amoui
of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of cconomic benefits is probable, related asset 15 disclosed,

N. Earnings per share

Basic carnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit afier tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outs ding during the year. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing adjusted net profit after tax by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares during the
vear

O. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an msignificant risk of changes in value,
P Fair value measurement

In determining the fair value of its linancial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing on

mitial recognition and at each reporting date. The methods used (o determine fair value include discounted cash flow ang ysis, available quoted market prices and dealer
quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never act ually be realized. For financial assets and liabilities
taturing within one vear from the Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these

Instruments,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to tansfer a liability in an arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
tegardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a hability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or lability. if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset ar liability at the
measurement date,

In addition, for financial eporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree o which the inputs to the fair value
Ineasurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in jts entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices Mmet asset value (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Comparny can access at the measurement date:
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices (unadjusted ) ineluded within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, cither direetly or indirectly; and
Level 3 mputs are unobservable inputs for the asset ar hability,

Q. Sepment reporting
ments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting done to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company has
1on maker by the Management of the Company. The Company operates in a single operating segment and geographical

Operating s
been identified as being the chief operating dec
sepment,
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2. Material Accounting Policies feontinued)

R. Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities gre recognized when the Company becomes g party to the contraciual provisions of the financia| instrument. Financial instrument
{exeept trade receivables) are measured imtially at fair valye adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried af fair value through profit or loss, Trade receivables are
measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant financing vompanent in accordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract,
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and linancial liabilities is deseribed below:

Subsequent measy rement

i Financial assets ¢z rried at amortised cost

A financial agset is measured at the amortised cost, if both the following conditions are mel:

* The asset is held within » business model whose abjective is to hold asseis for colleeting contractyal cash flows, and
* Comtractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely payinents of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount autstanding,.
After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using (he effective interest rate (EIR) method,

ii. Investment jn subsidiaries and associales

Invesiment in subsidiari and associates are measured initially at costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment in subsidiaries, associates and Joint venture are stated a1
cost less impairment logs, if any,

Tnvestment in subsidiaries and associates are derecognised when they are sold or transferred. The difference between the net proceeds on sales and the carrying amount of the
Imvestment is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the year of derccognition.

5. Compound Financial Instrument

The component parts of compound instruments 1ssued by the Company are classified separalely as financial liabilities and Cquity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a linaneial Iability and an equity instrument Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for g fixed number of the Company’s own Cquity instruments is an cquity instrunent,

At the date of issue. the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market mterest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
tecorded as a hability on an amartised cost basis usimg the effective interest method until extinguished upon canversion or at the instrument’s matunity date,

The conversion option classified as cquity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from (he fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. The
conversion option clussified as equity will remain in equity untif the conversion option is exercised. in which casc, the balance recognised 1n equity will be transferred to
other component of equity. When the COUVErsIon option remains unexercised at the tmatunty date of the convertible note. the balance recogmised in equity will be transferred
Lo retained earnings. No #ain or loss is recogmised in profit or loss upan conversion or expiration of the conversion option,

T. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind A8 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of mpairment loss for financial assets. ECL 15 the
werghted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due 10 the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
exXpects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the
Company considers:

* All contractual terms of the financial assels tincluding prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
* Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral 1o the contractyal terms,

i) Trade receivables:

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that resylt from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument,

i) Other financial assets:

In respect of its other finaneial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased sipnificant ly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
has not inereased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowanee at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit los else at an amount
cqual to the hifetime expected credit losses,

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default oeeurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the
Company compares the risk of a detaylt oceurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default veewrring on the financial asset as at the da{‘c. of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort. that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk
since inttial recognition, The Company assumes that the eredit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recopnition if the financial asset is
determined 1o have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. —
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2. Material Accounting Policies (continued)

iii) De-recognition of financial assets:

A financial asset js primarily de-recogmised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have cxpired or the Company has transferred jts rights to receive
cash flows from the asset,

iv) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement: Subsequent to injtig] recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities: A financial liability is de-recognized when (he obligation under the Liability is discharged or cance| led or expires, When an existing
financial liability js teplaced by another from the same lender o substantially differen terms or the terms of an existing | iability are substantially modified. such an exchange
or modification is treated as the de-recogmition of the original liability and the recognition of g new liability. The difference in the respective canying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial issets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount s reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there js an intention ta settle on g net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.




Spice Money Limited

Notes to the financia] statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024

CIN: l-'7290UDLZ[IUUPLCI[I-I‘JH‘)
(Rs. in lakhs unlesy otherwise sia ted)
3. Property,

plant and equipment

Particulars

Gross CArrying amount:
Balance as at April 01, 2023
Additions

Disposals

Written off

Balance as at March 31,2024

Balance as at April 01, 2022

Additions

Disposals

Written off - Exceptional Item (refer note 47)
Balance as at March 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at April 01, 2023
Depreciation

Disposals

Written off

Balance as at Mareh 31,2024

Balanece as at April 01, 2022

Depreciation

Msposals

Writlen off - Exceptional Item (refer note 47)
Balance as at Mareh 31,2023

Net earrving amount
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2023

Computer Data
Processing Unigs

Payment Total Capital work in

progress (B)

518.35 -

2.55 18,72 42.81 582,43 -
304 80 - - - - 304,80 -
(7.03) - - - - (7.03) -
(2.02) 2,02 _
814.10 - 18.72 42.81 878.18 =2
B T
502.12 2,921.16 1.81 11.37 42.81 3.,479.27 363.18
20,27 1,142 49 0.74 7.35 - 1,170.85 77931
(4.04) - - - - (4.04) (1,142 .49)

" (4.063.65

- (4,063.65)

423.32 -
128.11 -
(6.83) - ~ n

3013
1.74

362,91 1,805.10 114 9.52 3405 221272 -
04,36 L461.50 0.19 229 508 1,533.42 -
(3.95) - . - j {3.95) B

- 13,266.60) - - 13.266.60)

475.59

271.54 ~
95.03 -

5.10
6.91

1.94
J.08

279.61 -
106,84 ]
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4. Other intangible assets

In-house
developed Total
Software

Computer
software

Intangible assets
under development

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2023

565.08 1,399.63 L,964.71 226.59
Additions 0.16 - 0.16 650.38
Additions — being internally developed - 239,54 239.54 (239.54)
Written off (117.50) (192.00) (309.50) e

Balance as at March 31, 2024

1,894.91

637.43

Balance as at April 1, 2022 464.31 1,399.63 1,863.94 -
Additions - - - 452.48
Transfer 225,89 - 225.89 (225.89)
Written off (125.12) - (125,12 -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 565.08 1,399.63 226.59

Amortisation: i

Balance as at April 1, 2023 289.08 1,39_‘).63 1,688.71
Amortisation 174.70 23954 414,24
Written off (117.50) (192.00) (309.50) -
Balance as ai March 31, 2024 346.28 1,447.17 1,793.45

Balance as at April 1, 2022

351.48 984.00 1,335.48 -
Amortisation 62.72 415.63 47835 -
Written ofT (125.12) - (125.12)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 289.08

1.399.63 1,688.71

Net book value:

As at March 31, 2024 101.46 - 101.46 0637.43
As at March 31, 2023 276.00 - 276.00 226.59
Note: Intangible assets under development include manpower and other cost incurred for various internally developed soltware,

Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily sus ended

Intangible assets under development

-

Tt
Fjects in progress

226.59

1. There were no tem porarily suspended projects and/or no time overrun and/or cost overrun for the intangible assets under development as at March
31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

2. During the vear, the Company has capitalised an amount of Rs. 239.54 lakhs and have fully amortised basis the closure of old - Spice Pay Platforn
and amortised fully the written down value of some softwares of Rs. 66.29 Iukhf in the current financial year by way of accelerated amortisation.

S -~
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5. Leases

Company as a lessee
The Company has a lease contract for a building used in is operations. Lease of building has a lease term of 3 vears, The
Company’s obligations under jtg leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is restricted
Irom assigning and subleasing the leased agser.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and with low value, The Company applies the short-
term lease’ and *lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Amount

Gross ca rrying amount

Balance as at April 01, 2023 =

Additions 16.51
Balance as at March 31, 2024 16.51
Balance as at April 01, 2022 181.64
Discard 181.64
—— O
Balance as at March 31,2023 £
—— e E
Depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2023 -
Depreciation expense 0.92
—_— e MRS
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.92
Balance as at April 01,2022 181.64
Discard 181.64
e

Balance as at March 31,2023 =

Net earrying amount
As at March 31, 2024 15.59
As at March 31, 2023 =

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:
—— " JCTOW are the carryi

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance - -
Additions 16.26 -
Acceretion of interest 0.25 -
Payments (1.03) -
Closing balance 15.48 =
Current 5.85 -
Non-current 9.63 -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 43,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9,519,
The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-ol-use asscts (i.‘)% -
[nterest expense on lease liabilities 0.25 -
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 1.17 &

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs, 357.32 lakhs in March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 424.77 lakhs). »
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s, in kb undess afberwise shitteddy

B Arrestsavend et
Dguuoted equty share
Imvestment in suthsidiury
Batnaun oty Prvate Limited hace value s 11

Brvestmennt i filium sutlmidiarics
Wakarani Eonch Privike |t ¢ e vafus By | )
Feanth Toavel Solutions Prvate Lamsiod (Face witlise Ky 141y

Tatal imestnsente
Agprepate vatlne of umguotedd insestments
7. Laie

I Armrtived gon

Eamsecitred considervd gt

Fasaies 0 cmplon e

Laoun b citbegs

Total

8. Otler financial yssers

i Amartived ot
Emsecared considersd goud, wnlexs othersive stated

Asar As at

Maw o Shures,
March 31, 2024 Murch 023
A\Jﬁ_‘_-‘_ﬂ il Cuy it Nintteq it o ‘__(?__
March 31, 2023 Mo rren Nist-curren urTen
LR —_— D~ OSISIRENSE )
TR =R 027 - 2T =
Lonmp 140y iy . 049 .
S SAMKY LRI - i S -

— U e Tl
6,276,9% - 6,276,99 -
o e A ==
627699 6.276, M

6.276.00 - 0276, 9 -

_‘méﬁh_‘_‘—-_mh_zl, -
Nowi-curvent Curient Nom-curvent Current
o —————em | Sesowvem — Curreat

(K1}

. 148 16 148 16

—_—
e 148,16 14816

At March 31, 3029 At March 31, 2023

—_— —_—
Non-curiem Currend Non-curvent Curven

Hevurely depmity 21208 . 2T L]
Interest acered s e deposats - LREET - 25204
Indemeat seconed on onue tos el = RLE] » =
Fecervable on scttlemien ol wviee ansaclions - LTHT - |35
Tanved deeposats watly bk L remsinimg Mty o e Hian 12 moaths tnote 13 ERTRE =) € 1 R3n |
Dther receivubles

= e ielated pastics (refier note &) - 121 - 2504
- T eaphowoey - 4348 - :

- from wihers - 5 -

RS AT L2741 24T
Less impasnnent allonance fos oter secgivablen e s - G
Tustaul A.846.07 120581 244707
Followang e the ditails ol siber receivables dise fiom prvate voirpares i il am divection s a dircctor o a memher
s i b ik ol e SO —

Nastae of the private oty Nalure

Comumon Phsectop
Cammumon [recton

-l Trarel Sobuons Trvaie Tl
Kimman Exports Private 1 inied
wtal

9. Other assels

Lonsecured comadered good, wnlevs atbersive stated
Advimnces o employecs

Adances o servce providers

=l aelahed partics trefer nte )y

“ i elhers

Preghand o penses

Taabanee with Giovcrent auitlssstics

Faess it allow ance o advances In service providers
Tunal

1 Dneasbaries fus bawer of cost and et realisable itlue )
Stockeip-liade
Tatal

Tl cosd of v enlories e
Iimventon mehades stock in taivet B 1875 [bjs s cn Maeh 31 2003 iy

As at Aval

- e — = Murch 31, 2024 Mnr\rir.ill 023
ERin) .

a3
6.

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. L TAICR S,

—
Non-curvent Cutrent Non-caryent Current
o Cuent | oot cun

- 2228 : 20625
- s W pe
- 1112 8% R
1335 404 07 it
- aTs| = il 5%
B 113 TN - EETEE
10Ty - g
== 13,35 220603 - 371254

Asat T

Murch 31, 2024 Musch 31, 2023
T gty Y]
217 Td.62

satd s an e pense eludes s 1) 77 Baklis gtoe the vear ended Musely 31 D23« Rs. 20 75 bkl i respech ol wane-diovwns ol menton o et readisable value




Spice Maney Limited

Nides 14 the Timumclal statesents 45 st and B the vem ended March 31, 2024
CIN: l-'?ZWiI)LZNIJFL(‘Iﬂ-INID

(R im Dkl wiless idhe e stated

10 Tradde vecei nhies

Avul Al

e
Diade seceivables — March 31,2024 miwen g, 2023

i LEENT]

Receralifes Fon rebated pasties (refer ok e - :

[ p— 151175 133510
; o R . 1 (|

Taral 20637 191033

— e 1%i033

Trade veceis ables;

Sectted. conuduenid posnd : .

Mscvained. eomdered ] 203 T (21T}

Trasde recerables whicl laye S lant wereise meredi] fisk =

Finde: recervablen - codst impumrey 267 s Lia

-l
2.166,7 2.0MM6, 42
Impairmient b aoce Citlbovane e b sl ehimibitfisl deiis)
e tcceivables - credi e 1247}
Total

B~ T L |
2,163.76 191033
e or ntler recanable e e oo fiewes o prasuge SRS Bespecinedy o n el s dircton is o pantne. o directon oo menher
e v Uthes reeenvable ane due liom s or Uber ollicers ol the company eitber severally o oty walh i Oy e
- Nowamy e on- otlie recevible are ue e e i wlseh any directon 1 o parliier
Follwineg are the detaibs of iy Kou prvvate conpames in wi

a4 wther

—_—
Asar Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
= [L73
i Fpuonbs 1 yake o | iecion -

Taral e

= Drade tecenvables sre non-mleres Bearing and are Bty on e of 0 10 1 iy aml pavients ai¢ reeeived 1y casly
- Reler Note Mo 38 joe shetinls of Praovisgon fior | Spevhed Credit Lossss

Trade receivable iteing schedule
Asat March 31, 2024

Purticulias

Undisputed

- Uotidered pood

- Which lave sgmifican rereae i credit ik,
= Credil ingpaered

Disputed
= Considered peusd
- Which have st licani Herease o aredil gish

- Uredil impaire
{

Taty

As ul Murch 31, 2023

——— LM
Particalars
Undisputed
- Comsiddered good gz
* Whach have sipnilicant merense i eredil 115k - - - 2
< Uredit impaired B - RIES 3547 - . . iR

4% 37 41 - - - [ (VR

Disprated
- Comsidened good z = s
- Whhich have sigiilieant mereise im credit sk . 2 .
- Credit smpaired
Total

12 Corslyuned cush equivabents —_—

Asat As
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Bulance with banks:
O cairment aecounts 11592 53 Hd3z77
Chegies on hand AR 8T
Ll o harsd LK)

Tatal 1164139 1
e st i conpent acenant ischides halaoes 0 eseron becoits of Ba. 125 31 lahhs {March FL262F R 13040 lakdin g

Aull Figuere 1 [t XA (Phevious voarlts 3dd)
Attwonnt of Ra 374 51 fakfy (Mareh 312023 Re 24000 lakfia burs been [ened mmathed by banks szt fradulens Trmsaglion

13 Bank balunces ather than ubin e o
Asat Asar

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Phepersats will semunnisng matmty of fess than welve monthy Tam s T 33
Dt with remamng imatusiiy ol e than taelve munths lehd as SECIHI A borronings bank prsmnice [REUA T L1706
Pepasats wath remainang matiits of e than tuelve months 27758 [} 2

Dot with remminueng mtunts of meove thin tuclve meonths held as ety agninst boiowangs bank pusiantee 1036 14 300 38
2432130 2341409

L Asotant dislosed miden on etirrent fiancanl issels {remnaining waturiy of more than 12 smonils | i Muole By 13313 8y LL&36 1)
N T T
Tatal 210Mr7.38 21.877.99

Inchiusdes deqwsats of K+ 1 30002 21 Eaklos (March 39 2003 gy g2 300 11 lakbrs) Fien marked agansd overdial e lilies taken fromn hanks apmndg find de oty
Depiitts of R 3,562 37 laklis (Masch 31, 93 Jes 2338 03 lakhs) Dot anarked ngninst sebement of IRPS transalions,
Pepats of Ko 241 36 labhis {Maich 31, 2027 [ty 227 33 Rablis) e macked ngomat pre poid instrument haisiness.
Iheposits 0l Ba K2 K6 lahhs {Mascly 3L 2073 Ry TR 5K bk Pledged agasea issie of banh, Ela s
Dxeposats ol R 25 001 Bakbis i March 31, 2023, Ry 2500 lakhs) lien inrbaed agmns issne of eorpeotate credil e




Spiee Money Limited

Notes o the funaneial shatements as at and for e Year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U?ZUIIIUL}IN'GPLCID-I')NF

(R, in Takhs unlesy otherwise stated)

14, Share capital/Equity share capital

T “Axat

Autharised share capital Mg ki,
B,70.00,000 (23 af Mapeh 31, .'fUZ]'G.MJ.UH.lKJ!JEI:quiI\ shares of ls 10 cach T LRI
NI (a5 at March 31_ 200; * 20000000 Coinsulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Slures ICCEPS ol Rs 10 eachy = A, nuu:m
3 30.00,000 2 al March 31, 2023 tulNon Convertible Redacmable Prefercisce Shares (NCRPS) of Its. 11) cacl) 330000 =
Total . —TTTTYT
Issued share caplial
Equity share cipital:
Ordinary Shases: 4,40 U2.975 (as ot March 31, 2023 4 400007 P Equaty shaves of Ry {00 cach, fmlly called up gud paid up 4400 30 4,400,300

Tusc 1 Shares 8,60, Y ias ot March 31, 2023 BAGR0) Eyusty shares of Ra 10 cach, Ry 10 salled up (March 31, 2023 s 2 ealled upl. Bs 1 pand up &6 911 B6.00

PS: Ml fas at Manch 31, <023 3.30,00.000) face value of Bs 10 eqch Tl
NCRPS 280,00 000 45 ¢ ch 3. 2023 Nil) face vabue of Rs 0 each fially
Total ———

- L

R Ty

#refirence Shares anars the debt component and deamed captal contribution of the guued convertible preference shares The decmed eapital contrbubion 15 meludig n other ety and haliy componenl is included f
hurrowings (refer note 15 und 16 respectively )

Subscribed wmd Tully paid share capital
Ordenary res. 8.40.02,975 (as at Marel 31, 2027 AAOL975) Bguity shares of R [0 cach A3 400 3
AA0L30

|
0030
Subserilied b gt fully paid share capital
Cliss B Shares 869,030, s 10 sillend up cach (a5 al March 37, 2023 8.69.030, Rs 2 called up wachy Eguity shares of Rs 10 cach B0 1738
Puss Cally & Hunpand each (as at Mareh 3, 2023 Rs 1 tnpad each) T8 21 64
— e e

ST T i v9

iz the current yew, thyed and final endl of Rs 27 62 rer shire, R 8 towards nomal value and Rs 1962 towards eClarlies promism, wrounting to Rs 240 03 lakhs was called up on 869 010 ¢ lss B shares on Devember
13,3003 V lks 0ok recerved any eall money as at repoutang dite

During. the previons year, Secmd Call of Rs 5 43 por shire, R 1 towands nosinal value Re 245 wmvards secuntties premin, SN [0 Ry 20,98 Lakhs was called up o %40,030 Class B shares om December 13, 3022
Thie Company has pot received any call money as ar Tepating Jate

harised Ilrarbia"j_la_lilt_llﬂlcgh ingg anid at the end of the re parting year: e S
Asat As at Asat

A. Reconciliation of the sumber of shares anid amonnt of

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 Maurch 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
e NS e T No.ofShare  Reinlakiy — No.ofShare
kg of e viear L0000 OO0 0 AL,

1 atthonsed sagia
At the end of the year

Kl T 00

i}

¢ lative C i ible Pref

= bepiuung of the ve AN 4000 () .00 00 ()
Claitage i avthiess s captal = i MLAN o

A the end oF the yeas = ¥ 3 KU

mertible Redeemihle Preference Shures

Bepuning of the veur ¥
18 8 At el capital
A the end o the

Specrl resution was assed by members at jis enlia-ordinany peneral mectmg of equey share bl eld on Janmary 15, 2024 for change i sthorised sl capyial

. Hecon ating ol the number of shires and ansount ot ling at the beginning and at the cnd of the reporting year: = S e s
As at As at As at
Mareh 31, 2024 M 2023 March 31, 2023
iy s S T S e _ Do olshares Ry in falihs A, ofshares Rg in fakhy
Oridinary Shares
{ s al the bennng A2 578 A A, i B
Tsstieal during the vear r_ — o = B S ]
Ehitstanding al the anl of the ve 1 A0,02,575 A 40030 A 400,30

Class B Shares )
Ohutstamding ut e ooy of the year B00130 Koo RN B0

Issued dharngs the vear - ey o e

Uinstmsbing nt e end of the Vear R.ia® H i, H.ad

Cumulative C 1 (& ihle Pref, Shares (CCCPS)

¥/ micling ot the b i of the year 3, 30h 0N b 3300 0,000 3, 300,00
S eonveried 1o NCRPS = =LKL 330000 - S -

Litstanding st the end of the veas - - A0 00 330,100

Nun-Comvertible Redeemahle Preference Shares INCRES)

[} g at the beyinmng of the vear - - -

LUCES converted 1o NCRPS 3, 30,00 4 EREGTTT =

Redemptivnn during the year {S0,00,001 __suoy 2

Chatszasdinge at the end of the v R RN

s amil restrictions attached o equity shares

s OF eouity shares as below

e shires have o par value of s [0 per share. All ety shases ranl, expually with regand 1o dsvadends nd share u the Comgany's resadual sssets og wanding up. The equity shares ape ClllIIJUd.[II receive
dividand as declared from, B 4o bene. The ol nglis of an wntlinary sharebolder o g poll {not on sw of hunds) e 1 propertion to amonl paid on equity share Voling Tights cannot be exerersed e respect of shares on
which any call ur ot sums presently payable fies it been panil.

= The Company hus tway

e shiall ey differcabial vonng 1ghts Vis n vas Ouidenaty Shares, aeaorndi ey

Chass B shares Fach Class [§ Share shatl hnve o par value of Ry b and s sssued o0 premam of Rs 24 52, These equity shares of the Comy

£ 1 Shares will lave ong vole 11 Propartion fo ameunt paid on class B ety shure Any fraction to be dissepandad e the puspose of s compsEaLen of soling pover Witk the eneeplioe o viking il
ags W shoses shall rank pan Poassu t the onfinary shares
' 30 1.2 ==
132 L7 [T 1:23 Callil and Rocened
13-Dee-22 345 L ane 245 Called but not received
13-Dee-23 162 Boo 1962 Colipd but ot recerved
T el i I 1. SR T ) enTe

NS N
(/7 Noipa \°
DEL

7 lﬂl&%\\c\\\




Spice Maoney Limited

Notes to the financial s tatements A at and for the vear ended Larch 31, 2024
C UTZWILIDLZDHIII'L('HH?H‘J

(K. i lakihs unless atherwise stated)

14,

© canital/ Equity share capiial feq med )
v

res held by holding Comy, A
Ut of shares issucd by the Commpany. detanls of shares held by Ditiispice Techmologies Lamited. the holding Company s a5 bejow
g =t Teshuologies Liniled, the fl 2L ompay is B e T = S

Particulars Asat As at

ixisy e =S T Mwed20 g
- MS1ATS (Vareh 3T, 2033 3303 TATS ey “hares Tt et

Nil (March 31, 2n2 FI000.000) COCPs 3 330000
ZBO00.000 (March 31, 20723 Bl NCRPS =
Tatal =

E. vlders holding more g F e Company
2 L 3 b Wl Bz & on _«___.___~—-__.___.______._. e —_—
Nanie of the shareholder AratMarch 3T,

= ERI == . of Bh
DiGispice Technolagics Limted, the Halding e
=Laquity Sh WS 10 cach ily paid 43431475 K3 43450475 S 8
UCCPS of Rs, 140 ench - = FI000,000 1011 0y
RURPS of jiy W0 ench fully poed 2RO 400 L] i

Yo ol

F.

shases have boen allotted withont Payment of cash or by way of bonus shares during the Preriend of five vears unmediates preceding the balance shoet e

L. Sierehol 1gs of Promuters as At March 31, 2024 - — e e == s —_— ——

a -_Nmnlhl};“. mbers of Shures
. ' i 2 7 L& ing th
S.No. Promoter Name Shares at the  Change during Mtheomdofthe % o Total Sharey 7 Change during the
the year Near
Year
- e i S 11 - ————
] s Lamited. the holding company
= 0l s 10 euch fully pag 43450475 u 43451475 Ui K =
ol'ils 10 euch fully paid RSN (3300 00 5 = 100 00y
=NCRFS of Rs T each fully pad - 2RO 00 2RO 16M 100 60

-Sharch

i of Promaters s at March 31,2023 ==

N mbers of Shires
i . Slhuares at the Change duri . i % Change during the
SN0 Promuter Name wt the enid of the % of Total Shares
" beginuing of the the year iy Year
——— I -
i DiGusmee Technologies Limited, the holding eompany
-ttty Shares of [s, )0 encl Tully paud - 4.34.51 475 W R -
LCCPS ol fs 10 wirch [ully pagd A.30,00. 0001 100 (s =
15, Other equits S S
Asat As at
L — March 31, 202y — Maren 31, 2023
IS e 333162 3351 62
v buck reserve secou) 311 & 7
Taerve 1428 65) (429 65)
) Shiare basid paviment reserve a0

e Helamed eamy Y19 53

Leontbaion 236,83
E1 Capual redemption neserve —_—
Tutal 1.856,13
Operung bulance 135162

Al Pre
Laess Calls i agy
Closing bulince

1 Class B equity shis sssog
s s 9 unpaid cach (as of March 312023 i | ungraisd cach)

B Share buy back reserve wecuunt
Openimg: balance

Addittons during the yea

Closing halanee

o Capital reserve
Opining baanee 429 65)
Additions during the year
Chasing alance

(2063

A} Shure hased Pavmenl reserve e

Chmanng balamee dias 43
1tz

1775y

5 Lapsaxd 1

Clusing balanes — = -
) Retuined earn e T
85} for the yenr i..‘nfla (A58 30)

SOPS trasterned from Share based payvment Feserve inet of tax ) (Grross R 17752 laktus) 11_, 8‘;1 -

Luss transfened to Captal redemplion reseve on redempiion of NCIRPS [EETY -

Add wl fron deemul capitel cootributaon = S T

Chosing balanee 5

11 Deemud capital cutribiting

Chetiuing bidarce x:mis.l

Loavs wnstiemed to relained v — — £

Clising balance

) Capital redemption reser ¢

Chpering bulamee

Miditions duging, the year =
Clusing balance —

AL — PP - =
soion -




Spive Money Limjted
Nutes 0 the finanei statements ay at wnd far the Near ended March 31, 2024
CIN: U'FZ!IlIlIDLZINHIPI,CIil-l')li'l

1R, hs unless otherwise stated)

Ho. Borrowlngs

Axut March 30, 3nzq

Secured; i urrent Curvent

Overdrall faciluties from banks & - 2570629

Unsecured:
_I)r!u rtion of non convertible redeemable preference shanes (refer nute 48) 383 39 -
Dhebt portom o Coumprulsoutiy Conventible Preferge ires (reler pole 4% -
58539 1R 30, i 153

# I the current vear gnd PERs year. overdrall fucilitees from bunk are seourad by pledge of fived deposit with banks. The Tacilines carried an Averuge imderest al 8 17% as al Murch 312004 (March 31, 2023 4y

17, Other tabilities
T N a0 — ANt Mareli 31, 30:

Prefundudisettlement balunces with agents Nlm_"_u(.m_"“ ’-,'\(Tl.lg?lr"_ . ﬂw_ﬂ.r'_r"ﬁ
Deposits fiom cuslogtiers 103 59 ' .. 4717
Delersed revenue - He A0 i
Advances from eustoniers - 33385 -

Statutory does payalsle

"rovisions

___Current_

H e employees benefit,

(Refer MNote 31) 36w 37 1t 51 430 99 44 48

Lostipensated absences 2748 273.55 4865

Provision seninge ST uneder dispute - 1026
Tatal 7Y R T TR

P9 Trade payables

Asar

March 31, 2024
Prade pavables w related partes (refer ol 34 = Cowel
Tradee pavables {refer mote 42 for detatls of duc to micro and small enterprises )

“ulstanding dues of Micro & Small Enlerproses

“Chutstanding ducs of Other thas Mo & Small Emerprises
Net balance
= 130 o smeve-and sapall terprises have been detenmimed o he Extene stich parties have been sdembfiod by the: Company on the baes of wformation eollected (Refer note o

Trade payulbile apeing schedule
As ut Murch 31, 2024
|

eriods from due date of payment

| Particulars e et g
— 1-2 Mmethu_n_.'i_-ﬂn_‘x
Micrs sl small enterprs 5

than mic

ol e i
Biero and sanall e

{Dspast] [
Disputes [hie

iy

2 Asal March 31,2024
Cuy

— Nomeurrent

Foredaied purties (refer sole na 34,
ccrtied but not due -
plavers elated pavables =

il ereditors -
Pavable v settlancat of serves rasactins =3 e SR W v N
Futal - AR i = 21960
*Fur Related Party Transaetions, Refer Note No. 34
1L R i ati Far the vear ended For the year ended
« b Kevenue from oprerations Mard 31,2021 Mareh a1, 2023
Revenue fram Contract with Customers

of digital finaucial services wad other Serviees JT8RT
Saleof products NPV An
Wrilten back of unclanmed balances e —
Tutal 43,942.56
a. Disiga regation of reveaue Based on timling of recoguition of resenue: =
A Services/prodiets teansterad at o i ume 43277 48
mslfenad over e P —— -1\
v from contract with Customers A3 942 56
I Disaggregation of revenue rased on primary sevraphical market:
r 43947 a1
aule baudia = .
Total Revenue from contract witl cusliters 1391250

= when the s becogye wieondstionel This

= Cuntrat assets prmanly edite 1o the Companiy's right o eonsuleration for work complited but med bullad o the teporting date: The controet tsels are transferiod 1o rece.
bl e ene (March 31, 2023 Wity

¥ ocstirs when the Ui Issbs an mvowe o the g arige bank As o reposting date, the Company had to contract asscts 18 the Company has uncondition) nghts on the

et labilitres relute 10 an atinn’s obligation to IGIIAELE sy 10 o o cusdome for which the i fas recerved eonsideration from e customer
o8 abrlities (deferrad moveniie. refir nowe 17

For conr

Cuntract halaneey
i Tollowing table provides usformation shout tracdee revesvablios, contrict assets ang contract habilises fiom contracts with customers e as oo

Vinbillad revenue
Trade recesvibles
Defenal revenue
Advarees fiom eustomers




Spice Money Limited

Nutex to the finan, Matements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2024
Cl ,U'I'Z'?IIIJDLMUIFPL("IIH‘!#‘)

(R dun bakhs unless atherwise stateddy

Inlerest meotne on financal sty meastired ot anion s cos
Taank deprasits
Uthers
Chain on derecopnibiog of financial labaliy
st o imeoine e pafigd
Resstal meome
Net g o s
Liabilities no

o propenty, plant & Ut
VRS reviired, writien bk

23, Chanee in inventorjes of traded poads
Ve at the begyy of the year

Less Caprinlisation Trom UG iy gntopy
L imventory at the gud of car

Total chinge in v entories of traded Ty

24 Service & Commission Charges

/ d dastraliutors cosmsission
Uther service cost

25, Emplayve benelits o Apetises

s, wapes amd bonus
Contribution o praviden) § il
Crtatinhy espens (Refer Note 7]
Share by
Stall nif

o Nite 37

st tinder developane)

Uhie Tvsdian Pashisment hay fippoved the Code vg Social Secunty, 2020, which wayld wgact the labaiay
et atl recond the sase an the

final rules are vis to he frapjed The Comypany will SAETY oul an evaluation of Ly

2o, Finanee costs

2T, Depreciation wad amurtication expenses

Dhepreciats on ety plant and equspment (Nule 3§
Amonisation on | of s anety | 5
imertisason on st (Nole 4y

et Fund and Lratugly
fisnewal results n the pettod w which the code becomes

Far the vear enbed ~ For the yenr o i
———March 3L 2020 Maren 31, 2023

16t 57 114921
- [iT5

o the year ended
-~ March 31, U233
o

nded Far the year endel
woMarch 30,3024 Mareh 31, 2003
K648 24 X394 03

S8 528 4%

134 40 14447

10661 Ho3y

M4 1669

I X — 953004

_oaten;

e effective date fron which the chanpes are applicable 1 yet bo be notified and the
elve anil relatad mides are publishel

Fur the vear eniled For
March 31, 20214

Jear eniled
el 3, 2023

tEUN 452
a5

March 31, 2023
133343

17H 35

EXRA) . 201078




Spice Money Limited
Notes t the financia) Statements ws at and for fle Year ended March 31, 2024
CIN UTZ'NNIHL.HHI[JPL{'lU-I‘JN?

(R in lakbis gnless utherwise stated)

25, Other expenses

e yearended  Far i year enied

Remt - _Magy _-*v.l_g_ﬂlH-_.__J}_l!r::Uhml
35620 42477

Ristes and tynes ] 4350
[nsurance R 67,80

Hepanr

= Computers and equipKnts LR 354,32
ANty aml water 264 26,53
Sing mnd sales promotion 147 58 3lLe0
Travelling and COvVeY e L.Ist 2 21347
N Eosty B3V T 58131

i profession L5303 43 233907
iR foey 31w 14.00

s 4] 2320
Vehicle mEkuag and nuentenanee 31590 3603
tatees: for expected erodit Jusses gt Ak T4 25
shebrsfadvances whitten of' vy (58
forest and Penaltiess (EX7 437
Corporate socal resporisibilin: expencitire (Refer pore 13 beelow | T 4810

Museellaneous exponses

Lo transfersed o amtnpble assets wde development

# lavodves penally of Rs |4 52 Jakh (March 31, 2023 Ry 298 lak) tmposed for Spice Money apents st personal U rather than comnercial 1 for IRCTC ticket hookings Tnvalves interest of s Nillakh (March 31, 2023 115
149 Jakhst umposed under ST Audit for FY 2017- 1% 2001519 and 201924

has dows not include the FREVIOUS Year provisions for doubtiul debts which have been writlen o) a5 bad debirs dunng the VeI amounting o s 84,12 lakhs (March 31, 2027 T 89 32 lakhs)

itors (excluding taves)

Sabutory awcht fee 1100
T st fee 250
e review S0

B nther capacit
Ceriiticy .25

Retmbigsement of oxpeses

145
1320

ey contrbubion towands Corporate Socal Responsahility (055 activities under section 135 of e ¢ vanpanics Act, 2003 durmg FY 203324 Flowveney during previous vear. the Companm wis

ovids USH Necessary dey s disclosed befow
— =i —iss e — ————
For the year ended For the year ended
— = _————— e March 302 Myreh 31, 2023
- P s R P Yooy - Ny e
) Chross amount equined to be spent by the Company dunng the vear a1
b0 Awenst aprovd by e board 1 he spent duting the vea iy 4800
w1 Amount spent during the current v Ingash Yot to he paid in cash Tutal
) Constrictivn Aiegusitiog ul any nsset -
1O purposes ohes than (1) shove A N
) Amunt spe turing the preyisss Near: Ineash Yot to be paid in cash Tatal
1) Constructg Juisticn of ngy assel - -
HOn purpeses other than (1) ihoye 4R 0y - 80
) Details of related Party transactions (refer nate 34 for de vy 4500
1 Detanils related 1o seentiunspent obligation:
=Uonirbition bl trust P
EILATE EEALE

~Lontribution 1o chantable tyst
- nspent amoant in relation 1o og ONELE Projeet
= et amotnl n slistion to oller thi SR Bl

#) CSR cxpenditure lias been ncurred for rural development and senider equaliy,
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Notes ta the finwacial statements s atand fir the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024
CIN UTHI.NIIJLZINHIPLCIII-I'JN‘]

(K. in lakhs unless o rwise ataled)

249, Tax expense
The s components off meome X expeise fir The vears aided Mareh 3 2029 and Murch 31, 2023 g

A Amount regy

alin profit and loss:

Current Incame Tax:

e
Pect of mcome tix of PrevEILE Vear

ofta relatesd to carhier penods
Clange i delerria s die o change in rale
Encome tux expense reparted in the statement of profit or loss

Deferved tax impaci on I of other U
Re-measurement of defined henetit obhgations
Tutal income tax benefit recugnised in other camprehensive incine

ineome (0T

B. Reconeiliation of

% expense and the Ing preofit snul iplice by India®s

P'rotinifoss for the vy

g e dhowmestie 1oy e iCY 25 17, PY 1 Yd485)
tupe impact o deferged fay

tible expenses

b n respect of current ineome 1y of enrlber vears

erredd tax of eastier veurs
Haabluy

et on CCCPS

el iy assels apd labulibies ane nttribataliie o e follonangy 3 -—

Defereed tas asscis

Deferved ta liabilities

For the year cnibd For the year entlod
——Mureh 3, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
1ol

(203 57)

- r.'ll 44 —————
1749

ended

——March 31, 2023

(822,83}

(IN7.53)

(347.74)
1387

el

(289}

" For the year onded For the y
— o March 31,2020
228067

Net deferred tix asset(lia %1
As at Asx at As at Asat As at Asat
——  Manhinoeni Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 Marel __ March 31, 2023
Property, plant s equpmwent, nghe of use and other Hatungihle 334 55 6% ) - = 61840
s
Difference in 1y ise and book value ol CUCER - - 1 7Ey -
tvasion for FSOPs 334 2503
Provisins for emploves ¢ 2REa2 - 19627
Provisions for loss alkowa, - 602
e . —| N I R | 4 [
SN3.02 10.76) 54302

3N =

076

— smag

Bukance as at 3
or luss during

Pty plant and vyuepient, vight of use and otler mtangible 1645 w11 95 %
rovision for ESOHy 103 54 (30,300 -
Prontsaie for emmloye benelits o w4 G} 283

vistons for loss allowances 3y 2.0 -

et of dhlfizence i tax base and hook value of Compulsonly (231 396 -
Lemerminie Prefiaence Sl
Other semns 28 -

MA whitenibapents e .

SLL0l

Net deflerred by asets —_—
Disclosed in the halanee sheet ag follows:

Asat
Mavel 31, 207§ ch il 202
58302

Tl
B!

| tan ssiegts
 tax thes

Beferved tay assets (ner) SRIu2
Diselosiad in the statement of profi and Ioss as follwws Asat cat

Mlargh 31, 2074 Macelh 31, 20523
F R34 20 51

Tax oot exnense) durmne the vear
npeet of (]
LY eapenise net)

—_— Oy

I pursuanee of Section 115HAA of the Tneome Tax Act. 1961 sotitied by ¢ overmment o Indea thyoug

pralit R ised in

March 3o 22:23 202323 Mareh 3 223 20034

Recugnised in Recognised directly in

~Heemalisi

Balance as at profit or loss Balance s at

00 ih i,
Jiriie Cl other equity
02324 — 202324 March 31, 2024
61RO 1283 85} 134 55
M (2351 470 3503
8362 [0 K [AVEEH) - 19627
13 30 - - B2
{0 76y U076 i .
2535 1y - - 2115
L R | | —
1,034,410 (434,20 (7.0 {470y SR3,02

Taation Laws (Amerdnent ; Act 2019, the Company lus opled fin lower imesime L 1ate dur g the vear
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e financial statements as at and for the veuwr ended March 31, 2024
2900DL2000PLC 114989

in Bakhs unless atherwise stated)

3 Earning per share (EPS)
Basse EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing e NEfitfthoss) for the veur atibutable 1o cquity Twlders of the Company by the wei
hluted EES amounts are <itleulated by drviding the profitdloss) attrrbutable to ety holders (afler

d averge mustber of equity shares autstandinngs duting the vear
Eslinge ampact on profit of dilutive otential equity shares) by tlye Aprepate of weythied average number of eauity shares

The followang reflots the ncome ain) share data used m the basic and diluted Eps computations
ProlitiTuss) attributable 1, eqiity holders of the Commpany - S
Prodit attrabutable 1o equity holders for Dasic earmnges

61765
—(617.65

Werghted averape wEmber of equity shares witstamding i the begnimmg of the yen 44RO RTE
Shiar

r

RUNTH

mmber of eauity shares outstanding at the cud of the year for basic EPS AR WTR A AU H TR

ot of diful ptinns) 24.71.58] 40805

Welnhited wy erage ny ber of equity shires tutstaniling at the vud of the year for dilutive EPs LA1L 30653

Basic varnings per share of s, 10 cucli | in Re.) 2.9 {140}

Diluted enrnings er shire of Ry, 1) cach (i Rsj» 28] (140
* Since th s for the vear eaded Mareh 31, 202

ellext of potential equity shares un EPS 1 ot consaderal s diutive and hece diluged 1S 1o same 15 Basie
Oht Januay 15, 2024, outstanding 33000000 Cusalative Compulsory Comvertihle Sh 330.00,000 Now-Convertible Redeemable Frefaence Shares Accordingly. for caley
od wiessings per share, tagemient il not consider the wnpad of cog

Mntion of

Prefirenc buve been convertal into 3




Spice Money Limited

Note

5 1o the financial statements s at and for (he year ended Narch 31, 2024

CIN: UT2900D L2000PLC104980

(Rs.

31

in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Employee benefit obligations
A, Defined Contribution Plan
During the year, the com rany has recognised (he following amounts in statement of Profit & Loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

and other fund 517.28 52848
517.28 528,48

[

Implover's contribution to provident

b. Defined Benefit Plans
The Company have a defined benefi pratuity plan. The fratuity plan is poverned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Every employee who has completed five years or more of

SErvice gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The level of benefits provided
depends on the member's length of service ang salary at the time of departure,

The following tables stmmarises the components of net benefit expense reeognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the plans:

Aability for defined benefit obligation as at Balance sheet date:

As at March 31,

As at March 31, 2024
2023
—_‘—_‘_"_‘—_-_?—- T T ‘_‘_-—_‘_-_'__———-—-__‘_‘—
Present value of obligation of Gratuity plan 46888 48947

Fair value of Plan assels

Net liability recognised in balanee sheet 468.88 489,47
(i) Components of defined benefit epst recognised in the statement of profit and loss unier Em Movee benefit Expense: -
For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
: e —_— e - _._,.._.__._OEﬁ____h__.._ e
Interest cost on benefit obligation 36,03

Contribution paid fram the Fund -
Expected return on plan assets
Net benefit expense

= 3446

(iii). Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: —
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
T e 32378

ﬁr;éﬁ i;g_@ﬁ_m_-d'_ln_'n::ﬁ ol ﬁig_:lﬁu_n_ o

luterest cost 36.03

Current service cost 98 43

Benefits paid (85.58)

Re-measurements (pain)loss e (6947 __ B24R

Closing defined bene t obligation 468,88 489,97

The Company has no plan asset agamst above liability for defined benefit obligation

Company’s plans are shown below:

(iv), The principal assumptions used in determi

—
For the year ended  For the year ended

—————————— March 31,2024 Mareh 31,2023
-D-isc:m_r:i e o T.22%; 7.36%
Future salary increases H.I:Jtr.'o :H..:m"c.
Retirement Age (Years) 58 Years 38 Years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM
Apes Withdrawal Rate %

Up to 30 vears 15% 1?"'?

From 31 to 44 years 15% 15%

Above 44 years 15% 15%
Mortality rate 100% of |ALM

2012-14




Spice Money Limited

Nute

CIN:

S to the financial statem engs as atand for the year endeqd March 31, 2024
1T2900DL2000PLC 014989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31

Employee benefiy obligations (continued)
itative sensitivity angal sis for signifiean

For the year ended

N March 31, 2024 al March 31, 2024 -
s [li{:counl Rate . __Future Sulary_ Increase
Sensitivity level 0.5% Increase (.59 Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation - zaindloss) (14.01) 14.75 14.58 {13.97)

i) A quantitative sensit ignificant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

For the year endeq For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate Future Salary Increase
-_.____'_‘_‘—‘—-—-1-___________1____-—-_._______

0.5% Increase 0,59 Decrease 0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrease

Sensitivity level
Impaet on defined benefit obligation - sain/loss) (14.09) 14.84 14,68 (14.07)
The sensitivity analyses above have heen determined based on 2 method that extrapolates the mpact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

L8iE) The following payme

Sareexpected to be made under defin d benefit plan in future years: =

Gratuity

As at March 31, 2024 As Kt March 31,

: 2023
Withun the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 100.51 49,48
Between 2-5 Vears 159.07 18947
Between 5-6 vears 28.79 3480
Bevond 6 vears N | L _ 21563
465,88 489,47

Total expected pavments o '_‘—‘%-—-—-______________________‘_,__ =

The average remaining working life of the defined benefit plan abligation at the end of the year is 25.74 years (March 3 1, 2023: 2557 years)
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Notes to the financial SELEments as at and for (he vear ended March 31, 2024
CIN; UTZ900DL200OPLC 104080
(R in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

32 Share-Based Payments

In May 2018, in order o motivate the employees of the Fingecl; Businesy Undertaking (desipned employees'), the Nomi and Re ation ittee granted Options {"originally issued
options”) to the designared employees pursuant 1o e Company's siock option plan namely, “SML Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 *EsOp 20157), The Optians so aranted will vest over 3
peried of 3 years, 4 years as well as over a period of § vears from the dage of grant in the manner given below-

B O v e e e R TR

Time Period
(5 vears)

% of Options
sranted

Time Period
(4 years)

Time Period (3 years) o of Options granted

T = 2:Vcsling —
— 3" Vesting o 37 Vesting

— o A Vesting

The maximum period for exercise of oplions is 3 years or 5 years from end of cach vesting date. Each option, when exercised, would be converted into one fully paid-up equity share of 10 each of
the Company., The options granted under ESOP 20 15 carry no rights to dividends and ne voting rights till the date of exercise,

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black and Seholes Model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.

During the vear, certain unvested options were cancelled on non-fulfitment of certain vesting conditions under ESOpP 2015, As at the end of the financial year, details and movements of the
outstanding options are gs follows:

Weighted Average
exercise price (2)

5.5
;thious outstanding at the beginning of the —— : — 33801 —-—;;-]—‘:J:—’g—?g
car

cised during the year
= linngtheyear

Options cancelled during the year

vesting period*

Options outsianding at the end of the year 260

FE 000

_ Asat3l March, 2023

Wl;.igmﬂlmmgl: il \\'oigl{t il aiv_rnlgc_.
Xereise price (¢ exercise price (4)

Car
Options pranted under ESOP 2015
Options exercised during the year

anding at the end of the vear
5 exercisable at the end of the year

I R
As at 31 March, 2023 .
Weighted Average

Ipti . A
. of Options _exercise price ()

Options oulstanding af the beginning of the
vear

dduringthe year
Opuons cancelled during the year
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Notes to the financial Statements as at and for the vear ended March 31,2024
CIN: {’TZ'JBU!]LZQUOPLCIIH?SS

(R in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

32 Share-Based Payments {coni ied)

The lue of each Option is estimated on the date of g
Pa

zrant based on the ['uHu\vins A5SLmplions:
Ars

Valuation Dated
Dividend Yield (73]
Expected Life

_____ == n3 Mo 6.5 yrs for 5th vesting 6.5 yrs for ém_‘f}'_[’lﬁ_ -
, 5 28% L z ©.50% for |st Vesting | 6.67% for st Vesti
o for 2nd ves .00% for 2 6.79% for Ind vesting

7.21% 3rd Vesting 3 £.99% for 3rd Vesting

ricing (3)
Per Option (Rs) - 3 Years
‘alue Per Option (Rs ) - 4 v,
Fair Value Per Option (Rs) -

*During the vear, vesting period of 4,50,000 options issued to Mr. Ramesh Venkataraman ha
year have been ch

5 been amended from 3 years (o 3 years, Accordingly number of options outstanding at the end of the
anged shown under 3 years vesting plan and 5 years vesting plan respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: [!7290(}!)[;2000]&(?104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

33. Commitments and contingencies

(a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining (o be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated value of contracts (net of’advances)
remaining to be exceuted on capital account
and not provided for,

200.62

(b) Contingent Iiy hilities
Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

Income Tax
In respect of assessment year 2018-19. the Assessing Officer has made disallowance
o' Rs 69.01 lakhs to the assessed income in the order ol assessment passed u/s 143(3)
of Income Tax Act, 196] and tax thercon adjusted against the Income Tax Refund
claimed in ITR angd refunded the balance amount of Rs 7.10 lakhs. The Company has
liled an appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) on April 07, 2021.

Goods and Services Tax 95.76
In respect of tax period Nov 2018 to March 2019, the State tax officer of Dehradun,
Uttarakhand has made demand of Rs, 95.76 lakhs on July 4, 2023, The litigation is

pending with Uttarakhand High Court,
S N

A P\
w/

(R el
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Notes to the financial statem ents asatand for the vear ended March 31, 2024

CIN: UTZ‘)I}!IDL‘HIUUPLCI (4989
(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34 Related party tra nsactions

In aecordance with the requirements of Ind AS - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, names of the refated parties, related paity refationship, transactions and outstanding balances mcluding
commitments where contral exits and with wham transactions have taken place during reported petiods are!

Entity with significant in fluence:

Ultimate Holding Company

Intermediate Holding Com any

Holding Company

Kev managem ent personnel (KMIP) of Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

Fellow subsidiaries

Key management persannel (KMP)

Other entities where KAMP i5 i trustee

Particulars

Rent paid

Dunspice Technologies Limitad
Kimaan Exports Private Limited
Services received

Dizispice Technologies Limited
E-Arth Travel Solutions Private Lunited

Rental income

Digispice Technologies Limited
Remuneration paid (Short-tern ¢
Mr. Sanjeev Nand Kumar

Mr, Sunil Kumar Kapoor

Ms. Meuha Bansal

Ms. Chaitali Desai

Mr. Ramneesh Arora

Mr, Vivek Venkatesan

n‘IEIF\'ec E‘.'Il_ca.&] =

Director sitting fee
J Mr Mrutvuniay Mahapatra
Dr. Rashini Awsarwal

Ms. Veena Mankar

| Mr Suman Ghose Hazra

Consultay vment (Legal and professional fees)

My, Ramesh Venkatraman

of expenses paid to related com nanies
Digispice Technologies Limited

Reimbursement of expenses naid to related parties
Mr. Ramesh Venkatraman

Other expenses
Kimaan Exports Private Limited
SRS N

S, with related pa

Following transactions were entered in normal course of business riies: o
’_ ——________-——-_t_._____j_'——-—____—-—-_._
e e

——— e e

KMP
___-___________'_‘_——-———-—-___'—'

Rajarshi Modi Private Limited { Fonne ly known as *Siman Global Corporate Holdmg
Private Limited’)

Spice Connect Private Linmited {Farmerly known as Smart Ventures Private Limited)
DiGIiSPICE Technologies Limited

Mr. Vineet Kishore {Chief Financial Officer- Haolding Company)
M. Rohit Ahuja (Exceutive Director- Holding Company)

Kimaan Exports Private Limited

WSFx Global Pay Limited {formerly Wall Street Finance Lid)
E-Arth Travel Solutions Private Limited
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited

Mr. Dilip Kumar Modi (Non-Exeeutive Chairman till December 22, 2022y {Apponted
as CEQ wef. Apnl 0, 2024)

Mr. Ramesh Venkataraman (Non-Executive Director) (Appointed as the Chairman w e f:
January 23, 2023)

Mr. Sunil Kumar Kapoor (Director & Chief Finaneaal Officer)

Mr, Mﬂll_\_r'LLII]a_\' Mahapatra {Independent Director)

Di Rashmi Aggrarwal (Independent Director)

Ms Veena Mankar (Independent Director)

M. Sanjeev Nand Kurhar (Chief Executive Officer ull March 30, 2024)

Mr. Rajneesh Arora (Whole-time Director till December 22, 2022)

Mr. Suman Ghose Haza {Independent Director til] September 29, 2022

Mr. Subramaman Mural; (Not-Executive Drector til] December 22, 2027)

Mr. Vivek Venkatesan (Chief Financial Officer il August 23, 2022)

Ms. Megha Bansal (Company Seeretary till October 2.2023)

Ms. Chaitali Desai (Company Sceretary wee October 3, 2023)

Ek soch Foundation

Relationship

—-—

For the period ended

For the year ended|
I 023

Holding Company 212
Subsidiary 230.01
e, o TN
Holding Company 9“ 49
Fellow Subsidsary 95 00

Holding Company 3

KMP a4t .57 248 75
KMP 109 71 99 60
KMP 5.61 1363
KMp 9,84 =
KMP - 129.20
0B 18

Independent Director 13.25

Independent Director 10,00

Independent Director 175

Independent Directar - B o
Non-Executive Director 300 2025
Haolding Company A4 83 73.37

Non-Executive Director

Subsidiary
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Notes to the finaneial statements as at and for (he vear ende
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(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34 Related party transactiong

ot

Falluwing transactions were entered in normal cou

sement of

)

: s received from related Companies
Digispice Technologies Limited

rsement of

Mr. Dilip Modi

Mr. Ramesh Venkatraman
Mr. Rohit Ahuja

Mr. Vineet Kishore

Spic

end paid

CSR expenses

Ek Soch Foundation

The following wer
paid expenses

Dipispice Technalogies Lis

ables

Payables to KNP

Mr. Dilin Kumar Modi
Mr. Sanyeev Nand Kumar
Mr Sunil Kumar Kapoor
ttall Desan

| Ms Mepha Bansal
Pavables to Non-Exceutive Director

| Mr Ramesh Venkatraman

Other receivables

Spice Comect Private Lim
Mr. Dilip Kumar Modi

Mr._Rohit Alwja
Corporate Guarantee Gi

Note:

Particulars =
Short term benefits
Share based pavinents*=

The above remuncration to the

WSFx Global Pay Lim ited (formerly Wall Street Finance Lid, )

et Private Limited

ian Exponts Private Limited

Digispree Technologues Limited

received from related |

Digispice Technologies Lumited

e the baly nees receivable from/pavable to (he

nited

rse of business,

yarties

Arth Travel Solutions Private Limited
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited
Kimaan Exports Private Limited
Digispice Technolosies Limited

Dugispice Technologies Lunited

ited

‘en for #i

—_—

key managerial personne,

| does not include the

d Mareh 31, 2024

with related parties; {eontinued)

Holding Company

Holding Company

Founder and CEO
Non-Executive Director 0.98
KMP of Halding Company 17.32
KMP of Holding ompany H

Fellow subsidiary 3.42
Intermediate holding company ~2939"

156.82

165.00 165.00

related parties as at yearend:

Holding Company

Halding Company
Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidary
Fellow Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Holding Compy

Founder and CEO
KMP
Kwmp
KMp
KMP

dare as under:

Company as o whole and charge taken towards share based payments expense.

** During the vear, the Comnpany has grante
options. Out of stocks uptions granted to KMPs, total oulstanding
Terms and conditions of trans
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest Free an

$ Disclosed in Note No, 20

e DiCiSPICE Technologies Limited (Holdar
property held by the Holding Company in Dehradun, Though the bill discountin,

of Scheme of Arrangement,

been given by the Company

35 Sepmoent information

on net basis

d Nil options to KMPs and 18, 040, G

actions with related partics:

12 Company) had obtained a bl

Holding Company =
————————— floldina Company

(i) Summarized details of rem uneration to Key Managerial Personnel
wae o to Key Managerial Perso

i - TR = s ey
provision made for gratuity and leave benef 15, as they are detenmumed on an actuarial basis for the

| settlement oeeurs in cash.

Nor-Exceutive Director
_—

—_—

Holding Company
Intermediate holding company
Founder and CEQ
KMP of Holding Campany

FY 2023.24 FY 202223

0 options have heen lapsed during the year, value of which shall be disclosed at the tume of exervise of
as on March 31, 2024 are 10,97 360 {as on March 31, 2023 - 28,97 360),

| discounting facility from Indusind Bank Limuted {"the bank") which is secured by the commereal
g facility and the Dehradun praperty both have been moved to the Holding Company on implementation,

the title deed of this property stll remains in the name of Spree Money Limited {"the Conmpany”) Hence, on the request of bank, a corporate fuarantee had
to the bank The same has been withdrawn in FY 2023.24

The Company 15 engaged in the information technology business renderin

identified as being the chiof operating decision maker (CODM),

rewards, the entire business

Accordingly, the disclosure

has been considered gs a single sepment in tenns of Ind

requirements of Ind A% 108

are not applicable,

2 financial technolopy and ticket booking services. The board of directors of the Company which have been

S,

i(—“

evaluate the Company's perdormance. Based on 1dentical services the Company deals m, which have similar risks and
AS-108 on segment reporting.

A7)
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
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(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

36. Fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and f inancial liabilitics, neluding their levels in the fair value hicrarchy. are presented below, [t
does not include the fajr value information for financial asscts and financial liabilities whose carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

value,

Particulars . .
Carrying amount

Fair Value

Financial assets

As at March 31, 2024

oy _—
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cosi i
-Loan (Non-Current) 5 ‘___-___'_'_‘_‘—‘—'—-—-_—-—-_.__ e

=Other financial assets (Non-Current) 3.546.07 - - 3,546.07
-Trade receivables 2.163.76 - - 2,163.76
~Cash and cash equivalent L1.641.39 - - 1164139
-Bank balances other than above 21.007.38 - - 21,007.38
-Loans (Current) 14816 - - 148.16
~Other financial assets (Current) 1,295.51 - - 1.295.51
Total financial assets ‘_‘_Jﬁ“fﬁ?‘._" - - - e 39,802.27
Financial liabilities

-Lease liabilitics (Non-current) 9.63 9.63
-Borrowing (Non-current) 58539 - - 58539
-Borrowing (Current) 4.830.55 - - 4.830.55
-T'rade payables 1.346.77 - - 1,346.77
-Lease liabilities (Current) 5.85 5.85
-Other financial liabilities (Current) 1.818.00 - 1.818.00

Total finaneig) liabilities 8.596.19

& 8,596.19

—_—

Particulars

-Other linancial assets (Non-Current) 2.047.07 -
~Trade receivables 191033 -
-Cash and cash equivalent 1144056 -
-Bank balances other than above 21.577.99 -
-Loans (Current) 1.01 -

1,519,78
35,644.90

-Other financial assels (Current)
Total financial assets

As at March 31, 2023

Carrying amount Fair Value
Financial assets VTPl EVOCI
-Loans (Non-current) 11816 -

Amortised Cost

i 148.16

5 2,047.07
- 1.910.33

- 1144056
% 21,577 99
- 1.01

- 1.519.78

- 38,644.90

Financial liabilities

-Lease liabilitics (Non-current) - -
-Borrowing (Non-current) 3.297.88 -
-Borrowing (Current) 7.154.53 &
-Trade payables 1.934.98 -

-Lease Labilities {Current) L 5
-Other linancial liabilities (Current)

- 3,297 88
z 7.154.53
- 1.934.98

2.190.60 = - 2,190.60
A S S e AL
Total financial liabilitics 14,577.99 - - 14,577.99

Investments in note 6 Tepresents investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries which are carried
W be disclosed as per Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments Disclosures™. Hene J{TCA‘?NE@ have been excluded from the

N

at cost and hence are not required
above table.
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atand for the Yearended March 31, 2024

37.Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured ordisclosed in the financial statements ar
on the lowest level input that js sigmilicant to the fajr value measurement ag 5 whole:

Level 1 - Quoted ( unadijusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation technigues for whicl, the lowest leve) input that is significant to the fair valye measurement is directly or indirectly
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valye measurement is unobservable

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at {
the fair valye mformation for financial assets angd financial liabilitie
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included a
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following

e categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based

observable

air value, including their Jevels in the fair value hicrarchy, are presented below. It does not include
s if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value,

the amount at which {he instrument could be exchanged in a current ransaction between willing parties,
methods and assumptions were used 1o estimale the fair values.

- Borrowings are evaluated by the Company base
- The fair value of other fin
remauming maturities

d on parameters such ag Interest rates and specific country risk faclors,

anctal habilities, js estimated by discounting future cash lows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and

- The fair values of the Company’s illlcn'cs1~bca1'i1|g; borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using

discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate
as at the end of the reporting period. No own non- performance risk as ar March 31, 2024 was assessed,

Financial lnstruments by Category

Particulyrs
~——— . Faricula
neial assets

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

| Levis T - ."‘.-3?1“__“_ _

191033

LLA40.56

assets (Non-Current)
¢ receivables o
and cash equivalent

= ?'_IES_EU {- =S
1161139 |
21.007.38

a
wing (N

lrade payables
-Lease liabilities (Current)
-Other financial liabilities (Current)

Total financial liabilities

1.81 8?[}(]
8.596.19

8,596,19

* Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilitjes that are measured at

amortised cost, are considered under Level 3 fair value hierarchy
There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during

the current vear and previous vear,
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CIN: l.-"i'z‘)fl(lf)LEl]()lH‘l,Cl (4989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

38, Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilitics, comprise borrowings, tade and other payables. The mag purpose of these financial liabilities 15 to finance and support the operations of the
Company, The Company’s principal financial assels nclude trade teceivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, loans and other financial assets that derive directly trom its
operations. The Company investment in subsidiary companies measured at cos. -

The Company s exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senjor Management advises on financial nsks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework. The senior Hanagement provides assurance (lay the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures ang that financial risks are
identified, me, d and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fair value of Tuture cash flows of a Inancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of ri
currency risk, interest rate rigk and other price risk. such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affecred by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits.
Company is nat affected by commodity risk and currency risk,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or fugure cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk
of changes in market interest rates relates primarily o the Company’s short-term dehy obligations with floating interest rates and loan advanced by Company to fellow subsidiaries and a
body corporate.

The Senior Management of the Company manages it mierest rate risk by having a balanced portiolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensttivity to a reasonably possible ol
Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact an floating rate borrowi
mrate is as follows:

0 interest tates on that portion of borrowings affected, with all other variables held constant, the
S present rate is FDR iterest rate plus 19 March 31, 2024: FDR interest rate plus 19), the impact

of change

In the current vear. interest rate sensitivity is caleulated on bortowing and interest bearing deposits from customers while in the previous year it was calculated on borrowing, The inpact
ol change in interest rate is given below:-
Iu:rr:lse.-‘{l)ecrenacj in

Increasefdecrense profit before tax and
in basis points equity before tax
March 31, 2024 50 (12.88)
12.88
March 31, 2023 50 (35.77)
35.77

Equity price risk
The Company's
trading of cquity

urities are mainly in subsidiary companies which s suseeptible to mpaitment 1est g5 applicable. The Company does not engage m active

vestment in unlisted equity
1struents. The Board of Directors of Company reviews and approves all equity invesiment decisions

Other risl/inherent risk
The Company operates in financial services sector and manages very high volume of transactions, which have the inherent risk of funds MAnAgEement n comparison to other services
seclor

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a tinancial instrument or customer contract. leading to a financial loss, The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade teceivables) and from its financis 1 activities, meluding Loans, deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial instruments

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company”s established credit palicy, procedur
based on an extensive eredit rating scorecard and individual credit limirs are defined in accordance with this assessment and also based upon agrecinent/tenms with respective customers,

s and control relating 1o customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed

are regularly monitored,

h reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups
The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as

tetions and industries and operate in Lirgely independent markets,

Outstanding customer receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at e
and assessed for impairment collectively.
its customers are located jn several jur

The Campany has used a practical expedient and analvsed the recoverable amount of the receivables on an individual basis, The Campany provide for expected loss allowance for

s for forward looking informagion's
Sall d“:%

financial assets based on historical credit loss experience and adjustin

e N\
> SON
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nded Mareh 31, 2024

38. Financial risk ma

nagement obiectives and

nolicies {continued)

Trade receivables (co
The following table

mtinued)

provides information about EXpOsure to credit risk ang expected credit loss for trade

receivables for customers:
As on March 3 1, 2024
— T archal, 2l

—_—
Rs. In lakhs Gross Carrying - Weighted-Average Loss Credit-
Amount Loss Rate Allowance Impaired

Not Due 175.11 0% - No
1= 90 days 317.88 (% - No
S1-180 days 36.84 0% - No
181-270 days La2 0% - No
271-365 days 12056 0% = No
More than 365 diyg No

2.97 )% 297
654,98

As on March 31, 2023
Rs. In lnkhs

Amount
Not Due 39402

1- 90 days 154,70 Y% 498 No
91-180 days 3429 930, 31.64 No
181-270 days 37.82 920, 34.85 No
271-365 days 59.58 35 2001 No
More than 365 days —— e 0% e No
081,32 96.09 -

Movement in the ex

pected eredit loss allowance of receivables
pected credit — RO - .
ar emded March 31, 2023
—=arended Varch 31,2023

For the year ended March 31,2024 For the ye
96.09

e
Balance at beginning of the vear

19.05
Add: Provided during the year 297 7925
Less: Reversals of provision (11.97) (2.21)
Le mounts written off (8411) -
Bal at the end of the year ) 2,97 —_ 96,00

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of
The Company’s objecti
with respect to refinancing
over with existing lenders.

a shortage of funds using
O maintain a bal

a liquidity planning tool
ance between contnuity of funding and Nexibility through the use of bill discounting facility. The Company ass
its debt and concluded it to be low, The Company has aceess to a suflicient variety of sources of funding,

essed the concentration of risk
and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled

The table below sunmarises the maturity profile ed on contractual undiscounied pavinents,
0w sumimarises the iy : s,

Less than 3 AT

e - Cnrr\'ing- value On demand months 1to 5 years Total
As at March 31, 2024 ) —— o - o
Debt portion of non convertible redeemable
preference shares (refer note 48) 2,839.65 - T00.00 1,500.00 600,00 2,800 00
Dividend on preference shares - - 159.72 - 159,72
Borrowings 257629 2.576.29 5 % - 2.576.29
Trade payables 1,346 77 - L346,77 - - 1.346.77
Lease liabilities {current and non-current) 1548 - 1.55 4.65 11.37 17.58
Other financial liabilities 1.818.00 - 1.818.00 - - 181800
- 8,596.19 2,576.29 3.806.32 1 ,664.37 G11.37 8,718.36
As at March 31, 2023
Debt Portion of Comnpulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares ( refor note 48) 3,297.88 - - - 330000 3.300.00
Dividend on preference shares - - 165.00 - 165.00
Borrowings 715453 - - - 7,154.53
Trade pay: - 1,934 98 - - 193498
Other financial liabilities - 2,190.60 - —= S RTI0E0.
7,154.53 4,125.58 o500 3,300.00 14,745.11

Excessive risk concentration

Coneentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the s
their ability to meer contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
performance to developments affecting a particular mdustry,

phical region, or have cconomic Teatures that would cause
ntrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's

NI peogra
political or other conditions, Conce

In order to avoid excessive concol
concentrations of credit risks are

nirations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific suidelines 1o focus on the maintenance of'a diversified portfolio. Identified
controlled and managed accordingly,

Collateral

The Company has pledged part of its short-tern de
and for pre paid instrument business, The fair val
deposits of Rs. 24126 lakhs (March 3

postts with banks as margin money against issue of bank puarantees in order to fulfil the
ies of the short-term deposits pledged were Rs, 82 .86 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 78,58 lakhs) pledged against issue of bank guarantecs,
L. 2023: Rs. 227.32 lakhs) lien marked agamst pre paid instrument business, deposits of Rs. 13.092.21 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2023: Rs. 12.312.11 lakhs)
lien marked against overdraf f; es taken from banks apainst fived deposits, deposits of Rs. 3.562.37 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 2,358.03 lakhs) lien marked against BEPS business,
deposits of Rs. 75.00 lakhs (March 3 12023 Rs. 25.00 lakhs) lien marked against 1ssue of corporate credit card. Banks have abligations to return the deposits to the Company upon
settlement of the obligations under the contracts, There are no other significant terms

collateral requirements for its various contracts

and condilio|1s_a§5_9§j5&d\\witl1 the use of collateral
4 cisl R

S\
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39, Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital meludes issued equity capital, securtties premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent
The primary abjective of the Company’s capital managemnent is to maximise the shareholder vajue,

The Company manages its capital structure ang makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adiust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehalders, renm capital to shareholders ar 1ssue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearmg ratio, which 15 net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt The Company’s poliey is to keep the earing ratio less than T5%, The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents,

As at March 31,2024 Asar March 31, 2023

Rs. Rs.
Borrowings (other than convertible preference shares) 2,576.29 1,1534,53

Convertible preference shares (Refer Note 19) - 3.29788
Debt portion of non convertible redeemable preference shares {refer note 18} 283905

Less cash and cash equivalents ( I:Mi 39 (U 1.440.56)
Net Debt (A) (6,225.45) (98K.15)
Equity share capital

Other equity
Total equity (B)

4408 .99

Total Equity and Net Debt (A+8) 4,459.77
Gearing ratio L N e

In arder to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, aitongst other things, aims 1o ensure thar it iaeets financial covenants attuched to the interest-bearing loans and

borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches i meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank 1o immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no
breaches m the financial covenants of any mterest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year

40. The Company has uvestinents in substdiary and fellow subsidiar 1es but no consolidated financial statements prepared as (he Company has obtained requusite o objection from its
sharcholders. The Holding Company prepares the consolidated financial statements which are filed with Registrar of Companics in Indi
The consolidated finaneial statements of the Holding Company includes subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries listed in the table below

== ) Proportion of ownership

Pibitiulars Printipal o Fhusinias Method of accounting Typeof
Articulars rincipal place of business As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2003 of investment Investment
—_— ______________-_._______________ ohe A
Kimaan Exports Private Lunnted India 100 0% 100,00%, Cost Subsidiary
Vikasni Fintech Private Luinsted India 49.00% 49.00% Cost Fellow subsidiary
E-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited India 33.33% 33.33% Cost Fellow subsidiary

A1 Diselosures required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Details of Investments made (At cost):
arch 31,2024

nade _[II_\':SIII:(IIHI. sold durin e

articulars > Closing investments
~furingtheyear  fhe year S i :

K]i?;;iﬁ&p_m-m Private Limited N - - 6.276.00
Vikasni Fintech Private Linted E - fJ_rI‘_)

-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited 0.50 - - 0.50
o ———eamid 0y

As at Mareh 31, 2023

Investments made Investment sold dy ring

Particulars Opening investments during the year e cns Closing invesmﬂti_
Kimam Exports Private Limited 6,276.00 - - 6,276,00
Vikasni Fintech Private Limited 049 - - 0.49
E-arth Travel Solutions Private Limited 0.50 e - 050
.._.___________,___-——-_._.___________
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42 Details of dues to micro enterprises or small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Aet, 2006 as identified by
the management;

As at March 3L

- The amounts remaining unpaid (o miero and small suppliers as at the end of

the vear
- Interest

B e = N MM T T
- The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006
along with the amouns of the payment made to the supplier bevond

the appointed day durin cach accounting vear
- The amount of interest due an bayable tor the period (where the

principal has been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not

aid )}

- The amount of interost
accounting year: and
- the amount oT TUrTRer thierest due an pavable even m e stccee mng
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprise. for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23
penditure under s St

43. Leases
I. Company as a lessee

accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease Payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets,

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (ic.. the date the underlying asset is
available for use), Right-ol-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on g straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

[f ownership of the Teased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated usclul life of the asset.

The right-ot-usc assets are also subject to impairment.

i) Lease Liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilitics measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term, The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable Jease payments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payinents ol penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred (o produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment oceurs,

In caleulating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the Jease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilitics js inereased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In
addition. the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term. a change
in the lease payments (e.g.. changes o future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option Lo purchase the underlying asset.,

e/
| H

DA '\~ \
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43. Leases (continued)

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-yalue assets

The Company has incurred Rs 282.07 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 283.54 lakhs) towards
short-term leases and leases of low-valye asscts,

The Company has incurred Rs. 74.22 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Rs. 141.23 lakhs) towards
laptops taken on short-term lease,

IL. Company as a lessor

The Company was not required to make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS 116 for lcases in which it acts as a lessor,
exeept for a sub-lease, The Company accounted for its leases in accordance with Ind AS 116 from the date of initial
application. The Company does not haye any significant impact on account of sub-lease on the application of this standard.

The Company has recognised rent income under the head of other income ag follows:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

For the year For the year ended

ended March 31, March 31, 2023
2022

the year - 4.23

Rent received during

The annual lease rental o be received by the Company during.;]?.l,n:_cwcllablc period is Nil,
AN

SR,

P I“

\
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4. Financial Ratigs
The mapor fianeq| Fittaos o] the Company comnpited ds per ol stileiment prepred under [ AS e discloned bebiw o on

£ wath the reasigs B Eance.
Asal March 31, 1024 _mnmmﬂ-_
-MM

A h»ul Dreln IIrI-.fmlmg b Simrch.d.]u 5 I:i 4524 U 263 17 -S4.04% [Decrease in Dot - Fgquaty Ratows is un accoun of Towey
liabulieaesy Fuuiity
Debt Serice Concrage ramn Tamming befure meerean, Interest Vxperises, 35 06T 1547 5
deprvciation, tixes and 2aubon fprincipal payment of
shereeognition of finangin) bosrowings ain
liabiliy Teuse fiubilites

debd uned ncreased retamned camings which 1= gn
Sceount of profit during (he rear, where as during the
Recturn oa Fxquity ratin Net Profits aficr fives Averupe 1,3t 19 9.539.0%
Sharchulder s

PECvIous vear, the Company incurred Ioss
Equity

[EENT T

nereuse 1 Dbt Sorvice (o WLLTAE s s on acooun) of
profit during the vear. where ae suring the prevaous
year, the Company incormad Joss aml decreasey
b oas ot March 31, 2024 ay compared 1o March
3L 2023

~25960%  Increase in Retem ga Eyuity tatio 15 on accont o
peulit during the vear. where s during 1he Pren s |

year, the g ampany incurred losy,

Inventory Turnover rann Cos of ool sold Average Invemory 4506 34240 4429 Cost of goods sold for current year meludey Rs, 242
Mkh for pin pad devices which is nol included in
Mrevious vear (Rs 659,92 lakhy  due 10 change in
ACCTUnIng (reler note 47),
Reler note (al below 1w recomealianion
Retusm on Capatil Emplayed Farnings before interest and Capital Emyploye 267,30 E6TH 64 1477 thiy 19.717.53 Increase in Return on Cupital Employed is on account
laxes of profil during the vear. where as during the [revios
year, the Company incurred loss,
Trade Recon able Turnover Ratio Net eredit sales Average Trade 43,74 67 2037.03 2048 [ 43020095 307k 6% sllncrease in Trade Recesvable Tumever Ravo 15 on
Receivable account of decrease n average Irade rocervables wng
merease in sales
= '_——‘———-———'_——————_—,———- " e reyrrr—
Trade Fayable Tumover Rang et eredit purchases + Sery e Average Trade 32.333.3¢ [RCETT 19721 329154 162343 e ll
& commission charges + Cther Payables
T —————IMW_____—-——____——____ = = = = = — " e
Net Capital Turnover Ratig Revenue from aperations Waeking capitat = 43.942.56 50322 RTAZ 4315384 213% 243 | 56,86 Duc tm nrense i working capaen|
Luerent assety
Net Pradin [{umun. Imull 1306, 19 43,942 56 LLEL] (617.65) 43,153.84 (0011 -307.68% | Increase 1 net prodit ratie is o sceount of prodit during
oprations the year, where us dunng the previes wear, the
Commpany incurred loss.
: o E—— - T m
Larnings from Inyested Funs. Average invested - 6,276,949 - - 6.276.94 [LEVTEH
Fladls

. Reconcitiativn of Inventory T rnover Ratio;
Murch 31, 2024
Numerator Denominator Sumerator | Denominator Ratio Reason for Varfnnee
In Cont of zoods sobd or sabes Average ey 45330 34240 32
cost of goods soled ol P;n [ fexchding Pin pad deviees)
devices
Inventory Lumoner ratio snclushing 2oods sold or sales | Ay VT i entory M2 40 208 Becriased on wovount of lower safe of devices

cost of goods sold of Py g
devioes

fencluding Pin pad devices)




Spice M oney Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the Year ended March 31, 2024
CIN: lT?Z')U(JDIJO(JOI’LC104989

(Rs. in lakhs unless otherwise stated)

45, Significant decounting judgements, estima tes and assumptions

al statements requires management o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and habilities, and the decompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 1J neertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in Outcomes that require a materjal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or lig bilities affected in future periods,

The preparation of the Company’s separate fing

A) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses 1o the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available agamnst which the losses can be utilised
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning stratepies,

B) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit aratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial viluation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature. 2 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes

in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change 15 the discount rate In determining the appropriate discount rate for Mans operated n India. the management considers the
nlerest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation

C) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The mputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible. but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing tair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could alfect the reported fair value of financial instruments

D) Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises imtangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs 1s based on
management’s judpment thar technological and economie feasibility is confirmed, usually when g product development project has reached a defined milestone
according to an established project management mode]. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected
future cash generation of the projeet, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits

E) Useful lives of depreciable assets

The management estimates useful lives and estimated residual value of depreciable assets based on techmical evaluation, These dssumplions are reviewed at cach
reporting date.

F) Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing hasis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencics. For contingent losses that are considered probable, an
estimated loss is recorded as an acerual in financial statements. [Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent
liabilities in the financial statemients. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the financial statements. Gain contingencies are not
recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

) Investment in equity instruments of su liary companies

During the vear. the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument ol subsidiary companies carried af ¢ st lor impairment testing. Detailed analysis has
been carried out on the future projections and the Company is confident that investments do not require any impairment

1) Allowance for had and doubttul debts and advinces

Trade receivables do not CArty any interest and are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Individual trade receivables are writlen off when management deems them not to be collectible, Impairment is made on the expeeted credit losses, which are the
present value of the cash shortfall oy er the expected life of the finaneial assets,

) Share based payvmenis

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Black Scholes model 1o determine the fair value of options. Estimating fair
value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation madel, which is dependent on the lerms and conditions
elating to vesting of the arant. This csumate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model mcluding the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield und making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
pivinent transactions are disclosed in Note 32,

J) Lease liability and Right of Use assets o .
The Company evaluates if an drrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS |16, Identification of a lease requires significant judgment
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including gllﬂ_Jg;..[p{a\lcd renewals) and the applicable discount rate,
&
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45, Significant :m:nuniingju(l;.:emcnts, estimates and assumplions (continued)

K) Revenue recognition

The Company's revenye from the sale of di gital financial services and other services is recognized and accrued based on the number of successfil transactions and
- accordance with the terms of agreements for such services. Due to high volume of transactions. the number of transactions are caleulated pursuant to the
reports from the database linked 1o the front end application for digital financial services and other services,

46. The management have identified SAP and Oracle as accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant lransactions recorded. However. audit trail feature is not enabled for direct
database changes to SAP and Oracle for users with using certain access rights. Further, Company is taking steps 1o ensure feature of audit trajl is enableqd along
with audit trail at database level and maintain log of such configuration changes, Additionally, discussions are widerway with the vendor to ensure that a Jog 15
kept for the daily backup of the financial records in SAP, aligning with the requirements set by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),

47 Exceptional items

a. Pin pad devices were capitalized and depreciated over | year from the date of activation. Fixed amount recovered from the agent for use of such devices was
booked as revenue over 2 period of 1 year from the date of dispatch, The Company has reassessed its control over the devices and repossession of devices from
the agents and coneluded that it is not commercially and practically feasible to repossess these devices from agents. Henee, the Company has decided to remoyve
these devices [rom its Property, Plant and Equipment and written off the carrying value of Rs, 197.05 lakhs of these devices as on March 31, 2023, Similarly,
carrying value of related deferred revenue of Rs. 325.98 lakhs has also been written back and shown as an exceptional items (et} in the statement of profit and
loss as on March 31, 2023, Depreciation on those devices provided during the year ended March 31, 2023 was Rs 1 161 51 lakhs.

b. During the year. the Company engaged The Boston Consulting Group (India) Private Limited for business advisory services, for which professional fee
amounting to Rs 822,00 lakhs has been accounted for on accrual basis and shown as exceptional item being non recurning in nature. Accordingly, professional
fee of Rs. 133.00 lakhs accounted for during the year ended March 31, 2023 has also been regrouped from other expenses and shown as exceptional item,

48, The Company has Bharat Bil] Payment authorization from Reserve Bank of Indja (RBI) and in respect of the same, the Company needs to mantain a net
worth of Rs 10,000 lakhs as per RBI norms, Accordingly. on March 30, 2021, the Board of directors of fhe Company considered and approved 1ssue of
3.30,00.000 Cumulative Compuisory Convertible Preference shares ('CCCPS') at par having face value of Rs 10 per share agerepating to Rs 3,300 lakhs on right
1ssue basis to existing shareholders in the proportion of their existing sharcholding, The terms & conditions of thesc shares are as follows.

- Convertible mnto cquity shares within 3 years or at the time of fund rajse exercise (from external parties) whichever is carlier

- Conversion will be at the valuation at the event ol conversion

- These shares will be non-participating in nature.

- The Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares have 59 dividend

The Board of Directors of DiGispice Technologies Limited (Holding Company) on 31 March 2021 considered and approved the infusion of funds for an amount
notexceeding Rs 3.300 lakhs by way of investiment in 5% CCCPS of Rs 10 each offered by the Company.

The allotment of above CCCPS had been done on May 25,2021 ang money received in respect of the same had been adjusted against the loan repayment.

On January 15, 2024, company has passed special resolution in extra-ordinary peneral meeting to change the terms of 3.30,00,000 Cumulative Compulsory
Convertible Preference Shares (FCCCPS’) issued and allotted as approved by the Sharcholders vide resolution dated April 28, 2021and the Board of Directors
resolution dated May 25, 2021, by converting them into 3,30,00,000 Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS') so that the said preference
shares, having following terms and conditions:

- carry preferential rights with respect o payment of dividend and fepayment m case of winding up:

- be non-participating in the surplus funds:

- be non-partie ipating in the surplus assets and profits. on winding up which may remain alter the entire capital has been repaid.

= canty dividend on a cumulative basis @5% pa.: .
- Redeemable on or before 5 vears from the date of sharcholders approval for amendment, at the discretion of the Company, subject 1o availability of distributable
profit and fund with the Company:

- carry voting rights only in respeet of certain matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The related impact on accounting have been considered based on management estimates in the financial statements which has resulted into 4 gain of Rs. 7841
likhs on aceount of derecognition of old financial liability which has been accounted as other income in the financial statements

Further, the Company has redeemed 50.00.000 NCRPS amounting 10 Rs. 500 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Nil} during the vear,
Also, the Company intends to redeen the NCRPS by the end of FY 2024-25.

49. The board of directors, at their meeting held on May 10, 2024, approved a 5% dividend on preference shares, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
upcoming annual peneral meeting,
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50. (i) During the current period, the management of the Company has revised the accounting treatment of income from recharge of airtime coupons have determined that
it should be recognised on net basis (instead of recognising sale of airtime coupons as income and purchase of airtime coupons as an cxpense). The accounting treatment
has been applied in accordance with IND AS & and therefore the affected line items of the financial results of the year have been restated as per the table b;low. Such
restatement does-not affect the Profit/( loss) for the vear, cash flows and eamings per share and total assets of the Company.

The restatement each of the affected financial results line items for the prior vear as follows:

March 31, 2023 i y
(as previously nerease March 31, 2023
(decrease) due to restatement

Statement of Profit ang Loss Extract

Income
Revenue from operations

94,881.93 151,728.09) 43,153.84

| Expense
Purchase of traded zoods

(52,545.59) 51,728.09 (817.50)
42,336.34

Total

- 42,336.34

51. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111 to be disclosed in the financial statements:

(1)  TheC ompany does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

(i) The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

(iif}  TheC ompany does not have any charges or satisfaction which 1s yet lo be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv)  The Company has not traded or invesied in Crypto eurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial vear,

vl The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), ncluding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Com pany shall:

() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identtfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(Vi) The Com pany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds o any other person(s) or entity(ies), meluding foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly ar indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enijties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any fuarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vii)  The Company does not own any immovable property as on March 3 1, 2024 & March 31, 2023, Al the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the company
for building and office premises where the company is the lessee,
{(viii) There have been no acquisitions through business combinations and no change of amount due to revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment and other imtan- it
assets during the vear ended March 31, 2024 & March 3 1, 2023,

(ix}  Compliance with number of layers: Clause 87 of Section 2 of the Companies (Restriction on number of lavers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the Company.

(x)  Compliance with Approved Scheme of Arrangements: There are no approved Scheme of Arrangements in terms of seetion 230 1o 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 as
on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

(xi)  Undisclosed Income: There have been no income or related assets which have not been recorded in the books of aceounts, that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act. 196] during the year or any previous years.

(xii}) The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial nstitutions or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 3 1, 2023,
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